" City of Tigard
' Tigard Business Meeting —Agenda

TIGARD CITY COUNCIL & LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD

MEETING DATE AND FEBRUARY 13, 2024 - 6:30 p.m. Business Meeting - Revised: Agenda Item No. 12 -
TIME: Executive Session was added.

MEETING LOCATION: Hybrid - City of Tigard - Town Hall - 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223 - See
PUBLIC NOTICE below

PUBLIC NOTICE: In accordance with Oregon House Bill 2560, this will be a hybrid meeting where some Council,
staff or public will participate in person and some will participate remotely.
How to comment:

e Written public comment may be submitted electronically at www.tigard-or.gov/Comments by noon the day
before the meeting date.

e If attending the meeting in person, please fill out the public comment sign-in sheet at the front of the room and
come to the microphone when your name is called.

e If you prefer to call in, please call 503-966-4101 when instructed to be placed in the queue. We ask that you plan
on limiting your testimony to two minutes.

e You may comment by video through the Teams app. Go to this link to learn how to participate by
videa February 13, 2024 Council Meeting
(https:/ /www.tigard-or.gov/Home/Components/Calendar/Event/5245/372).

Upon request, the City will endeavor to arrange for the following services:
. Qualified sign language interpreters for persons with speech or hearing impairments; and
. Qualified bilingual interpreters.

Since these services must be scheduled with outside service providers, it is important to allow as much lead time as
possible. Please notify the City of your need by 5:00 p.m. on the Thursday preceding the meeting by calling:
503-718-2419 (voice) or 503-684-2772 (TDD - Telecommunications Devices for the Deaf).

SEE ATTACHED AGENDA

VIEW LIVESTREAM ONLINE: https://www.tigard-ot.gov/boxcast

CABLE VIEWERS: The City Council meeting will be shown live on Channel 21 (1st Tuesdays) and Channel 28 (2nd &
4th Tuesdays) at 6:30 p.m. The meeting will be rebroadcast at the following times on Channel 28:

Thursday 6:00 p.m. Friday 10:00 p.m.  Saturday 7:30 p.m. Sunday 11:30 a.m. Monday 6:00 a.m.


http://www.tigard-or.gov/Comments
https://www.tigard-or.gov/Home/Components/Calendar/Event/5245/372

TI GARD@

TIGARD CITY COUNCIL & LOCAL CONTRACT REVIEW BOARD
MEETING DATE AND FEBRUARY 13, 2024 - 6:30 p.m. Business Meeting - Revised: Agenda Item No. 12 -

TIME:

MEETING LOCATION: Hybrid - City of Tigard - Town Hall - 13125 SW Hall Blvd., Tigard, OR 97223

6:30 PM

City of Tigard

Tigard Business Meeting —Agenda

Executive Session was added

BUSINESS MEETING

Call to Order

Roll Call

Pledge of Allegiance

Call to Council and Staff for Non-Agenda Items

PROCLAMATIONS AND RECOGNITION

PUBLIC COMMENT

Follow-up to Previous Public Comment

Tigard Area Chamber of Commerce

Tigard High School Student Envoy

Police Chief/Police Department Update

Public Comment — Written



10.

11.

12.

Public Comment — In Person

Public Comment — Phone-In

Public Comment — Video

CITY MANAGER REPORT 6:50 p.m. estimated time

CONSENT AGENDA: (Local Contract Review Board) The Consent Agenda is used for routine items
including approval of meeting minutes, contracts or intergovernmental agreements. Information on
each item is available on the city's website in the packet for this meeting. These items may be enacted in
one motion without separate discussion. Council members may request that an item be removed by
motion for discussion and separate action. 6:55 p.m. estimated time

RIVER TERRACE 2.0 COMMUNITY PLANNING (PLANNING SERVICES) CONTRACT

o Consent Agenda - 1tems Removed for Separate Discussion: Any items requested to be removed from the Consent Agenda for separate

discussion will be considered immediately after the Council has voted on those items which do not need discussion.

FY24 BUDGET SUPPLEMENTAL REQUEST #2 7:00 p.m. estimated time

BUDGET SUPPLEMENTAL PROCESS DISCUSSION 7:10 p.m. estimated time

RENEWAL LEVY - SECOND DISCUSSION OF BALLOT TITLE AND REFERRAL 7:30 p.m.
estimated time

CHARTER AMENDMENT - SECOND DISCUSSION OF BALLOT TITLE AND REFERRAL
7:50 p.m. estimated time

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR CONCEPT FINAL REPORT 8:10 p.m. estimated time

NON-AGENDA ITEMS

EXECUTIVE SESSION: The Tigard City Council will go into Executive Session to consult with
counsel concerning the legal rights and duties of a public body with regard to current litigation or
litigation likely to be filed under ORS 192.660(2) (h). All discussions are confidential and those present
may disclose nothing from the Session. Representatives of the news media are allowed to attend
Executive Sessions, as provided by ORS 192.660(4), but must not disclose any information discussed.
No Executive Session may be held for the purpose of taking any final action or making any final
decision. Executive Sessions are closed to the public. 8:50 p.m. estimated time



13. ADJOURNMENT 9:20 p.m. estimated time



AIS-5425 5. A.

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 02/13/2024

Length (in minutes): Consent Item

Agenda Title: River Terrace 2.0 Community Planning (Planning Services)
Authored By: Toni Riccardi

Presented By: Project Manager Schuyler Warren

Item Type:

Public Hearing

Newspaper Legal Ad Required?:

Public Hearing Publication 10/30/2023
Date in Newspaper:

Information
EXPLANATION OF ISSUE

Shall the Local Contract Review Board award a contract to ECOnorthwest for River Terrace 2.0
Community Planning (Planning Services)?

ACTION REQUESTED

Staff recommends the Local Contract Review Board award the contract for River Terrace 2.0 Community
Planning (Planning Services) to ECOnorthwest for an estimated amount of $1,251,640 and authorize the
City Manager to take the steps necessary to execute the contract.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

In October 2021, the City of Tigard submitted an application to Metro for an expansion of the Urban
Growth Boundary to include the areas collectively known as River Terrace 2.0. These areas were the
subject of the city’s River Terrace 2.0 Concept Plan.

Metro approved that expansion on February 2, 2023, through a land swap. This decision was
acknowledged by the Department of Land Conservation and Development on May 2, 2023.

Prior to this, the City had requested grant funding from Metro to complete the Community Plan for River
Terrace 2.0. The Council approved an IGA to accept an award of $700,000 from Metro on July 25, 2023.

With Council approval, the City also applied for 3 grants from the Department of Land Conservation and
Development to support this work. Two of those grants were awarded in the amount of $127,000.

One portion of the contract is considered an Additional/Alternative task- development code amendments.
This work will be dependent on securing additional outside funding to cover the cost. Currently, the city is
waitlisted for a grant to complete this task. DLLCD expects that funding will be included in a spending
package in the short session of 2024 and the department is also seeking funds from a HUD PRO Housing
grant.

Additional funding is expected from the Department of Energy to support the climate plan portion of the
work in the amount of $118,610.



The remainder of the project budget will be covered from the Community Development department's
consultant budget across three fiscal years - F'Y24-26.

With funding secured, the city issued a Qualification Based Request for Proposal for the project on
October 26, 2023, with notice published in the Daily Journal of Commerce. Upon closing, the city received
one proposal.

¢ ECOnorthwest

The Contracts team has reviewed the bid and determined that ECOnorthwest has submitted a reasonable
bid. ECOnorthwest has no State of Oregon Contractor Construction Board violations and is not on the
Bureau of Labor and Industries ineligible list. Accordingly, it is recommended to award for the city’s River
Terrace 2.0 Community Planning (Planning Services) contract to ECOnorthwest in the amount of
$1,251,640. The contract will be a 2 year contract. Attached is the evaluation criteria and score summary.

ALTERNATIVES & RECOMMENDATION

The Local Contract Review Board may choose to not award this contract and direct staff to resolicit for
the work.

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

Fiscal Impact

Cost: 1,251,640

Budgeted (yes or no): yes

Where budgeted?: CD consultant budget
Additional Fiscal Notes:

This is a two-yeat contract impacting 3 fiscal years. The following grants and IGA's are supporting this
project:

$700,000 IGA with Metro

$127,000 Grant from Department of Land Conservation and Development

Additional funding of $118,610 is expected from the Department of Energy Energy Efficiency and
Conservation Block Grant

The remainder of the contract will be paid for by Community Development's operating budget (General
Fund).

Attachments

Scoring Summary




SELECTION AND EVALUATION PROCESS

A Selection Committee assembled by the City will review the written proposals. Proposals
will be evaluated to determine which ones best meet the needs of the City. After meeting the
mandatory requirements, the proposals will be evaluated on their technical aspects. The
Selection Committee will select the Proposer which best meets the City's needs based upon
its evaluation of a Proposer proposal. Proposals will be evaluated in accordance with the
following:

1. Completed proposal submitted on time Pass/Fail
2. Transmittal letter Pass/Fail
3. Project Understanding and Approach 35 points
5. Consultant Team Qualifications 25 points
6. Consultant Team Experience with Similar Projects 20 points
7. Project Manager Experience with Similar Projects 10 points
8. Diversity in Contracting 10 points

* 5 points for prime or sub-consultant(s) with any COBID certification (DBE, MBE, WBE, SDV,

ESB)

* 5 points for key project staff diversity
* 3 points for prime or sub-consultant(s) with MBE/WBE certification
* 2 points for workplace diversity efforts
TOTAL EVALUATION POINTS100 POINTS




Request for Proposal Evaluation Scoring Summary
2024-08 River Terrace 2.0

Community Planning

(Planning Services)

EVALUATION SUMMARY

7]
<))
£ z
Evaluation Criteria 2 5
= c
o)
O
w
Proposer Required
. P/F
Information
Project Understanding and 105 90
Approach
Consultant Team
Qualifications s 65
Consultant Team
Experience with Similar 60 51
Projects
Project Manager
Experience with Similar 30 24
Projects
Diversity in Contracting 30 20
Total| 300 250




AIS-5429 6.

Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 02/13/2024
Length (in minutes): 10 Minutes
Agenda Title: FY24 BUDGET SUPPLEMENTAL REQUEST #2
Authored By: Kalena Plath
Presented By: Kalena Plath, Budget Manager
Item Type: Resolution
Public Hearing
Public Hearing Yes
Legal Ad Required?:

Publication Date: 02/08/2024

Information
EXPLANATION OF ISSUE
Presenting the FY 2024_2 Budget Supplemental to the City Council for review and adoption.

ACTION REQUESTED
Finance recommends the City Council adopt the FY 2024_2 Budget Supplemental.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

Dates of Previous and Potential Future Considerations

01/09/2024- Staff provided project update on the Electric Mobility and Curbside Management Strategy
Project.

02/06/2024- Council provided recommendation to move forward with drone display.

Public Involvement

Impacts (Community, Budget, Policies and Plans/Strategic Connection)
The following is the summary of items that require council action for FY 2024_2 Budget Supplemental:

New Requests: (these were unforeseen at the time of budget adoption)

Electric Mobility and Curbside Management Strategy — The City has entered into an intergovernmental
agreement for a grant to support equitable transportation electrification and effective management of the
curb throughout the City. Project total is $1606,650, with grant funds from the Transportation and Growth
Management (TGM), a joint program of ODOT and the Oregon Department of Land Conservation and
Development of $110,000 and Tigard portion being $56,650. ($166,650)

Tigard 4th of July Drone Display — In response to the request to review options to celebrate July 4 with a
drone light show, City teammates researched and brought forth to Council on Feb 6th an option to
provide the community with a Fourth of July drone display. ($80,000)



ALTERNATIVES & RECOMMENDATION

Do not adopt the FY 2024_2 Budget Supplemental, which would restrict these projects from moving
forward.

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES
Fiscal Impact
Cost: 136,650
Budgeted (yes or no): No

Whete Budgeted (department/program): N/A
Additional Fiscal Notes:

This FY 2024_2 Budget Supplemental will increase the overall city budget by $136,650 across 2 funds.
The increase in the expenditures will be funded by currently available fund balances and will result in a
reduction of the reserves for future expenditures, which carry into the next year.

Please refer to the exhibits which summarize the fiscal impact of the quarterly supplemental budget by
fund.

Cost: 326,650
Budgeted (yes or no): No
Whete Budgeted (department/program): N/A
Additional Fiscal Notes:

This FY 2024_2 Budget Supplemental will increase the overall city budget by $326,650 across 3 funds.
$80,000 is shown in both the General Fund and as a transfer from Transient Lodging- which will provide
the transfer as revenue to the General Fund. The increase in the expenditures will be funded by currently
available fund balances and will result in a reduction of the reserves for future expenditures, which carry
into the next year.

Please refer to the exhibits which summarize the fiscal impact of the quarterly supplemental budget by

fund.

Attachments
Exhibit A- FY24_2 Budget Appropriations

Resolution FY24 2



Exhibit A

ADJUSTED APPROPRIATIONS
2/13/2024
Fund Program Adopted Item Request 3 Revised Budget
General Fund
Electric Mobility and
Curbside Management-
5 Investment & Infrastructure 6,307,632 Grant Funded 110,000 6,417,632
Tigard 4th of July Drone
4 Engagement & Innovation 9,296,397 Display 80,000 9,376,397
TOTAL 43,171,268 190,000 44,795,768
Transportation TNC Fund
Electric Mobility and
Curbside Management-
5 Investment & Infrastructure 0 City Match portion 56,650 56,650
TOTAL N/C 56,650 56,650
Transient Lodging Tax Fund
Transfer for Tigard 4th
8 Transfer 192,111 of July Drone Display 80,000 272,111
TOTAL 192,111 80,000 272,111
TOTAL BY PROGRAM
4 Engagement & Innovation 26,758,723 80,000 27,088,723
5 Investment & Infrastructure 56,859,270 166,650 57,025,920
8 Transfer 85,506,227 80,000 89,907,032
TOTAL 294,481,202 326,650 $ 304,397,357



CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL
RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION TO ADOPT THE FY 2024_2 BUDGET SUPPLEMENTAL.

WHEREAS, the city acknowledges those items that were unknown at the time the FY 2024 budget was adopted,
and

WHEREAS, the city recognizes approximately $326,650 of unanticipated budget in operations and transfers; and

WHEREAS, the increase in budget is funded by current fund balance and will therefore reduce the reserve for
future expenditures.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tigard City Council that:
SECTION 1: The FY 2023-24 Budget is hereby amended as detailed in Exhibit A.

SECTION: This resolution is effective immediately upon passage.

PASSED: This day of 2024.

Mayor - City of Tigard

ATTEST:

City Recorder - City of Tigard

RESOLUTION NO. 24-
Page 1



AIS-5430 7.
Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 02/13/2024

Length (in minutes): 20 Minutes

Agenda Title: Budget Supplemental Process Discussion
Authored By: Kalena Plath

Presented By: Kalena Plath, Budget Manager

Item Type: Update, Discussion, Direct Staff

Public Hearing No
Legal Ad Required?:

Publication Date:

Information
EXPLANATION OF ISSUE
Presenting the Updated Budget Supplemental Process

ACTION REQUESTED
Approve the proposed process for budget supplemental requests.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

To be more responsive, fiscally transparent and improve efficiencies, Finance has updated the Budget
Supplemental Process.

The current process is to bring forward to Council any budgetary amendments (budget supplemental
requests) on a scheduled quarterly basis. The largest of these requests typically occurs during the first
quarter of the fiscal year and typically includes any previous fiscal year projects that were unable to be
completed prior to the end of the fiscal year and new unforeseen items that came after the budget had
been adopted. Uncompleted projects are typically due to delays, conflicting priorities, and other issues. All
other unexpected and unforeseen requests are held until the next quarterly supplemental request.

This process has worked for many years. However, it creates many items per request, duplicates the review
of action items that Council has already approved, and creates a large amount of work in a short period of
time for staff. In some cases, department staff are unable to begin work on a new project that has been
approved by Council if it went before Council prior to the budget being appropriated.

Finance has developed a new ad-hoc process to alleviate these issues. The first quarterly supplemental
budget process would still stay the same. However, after the first quarter when a new item goes to Council
for action, it will include the budget supplemental request at the same time. Council will be able to review
both the proposed item and the budget appropriation request together. City departments are in support of
this new process, which is more responsive to their needs and requires less work on multiple budget
requests at one time. This new process conforms with Oregon Budget Law ORS 294.471.

ALTERNATIVES & RECOMMENDATION



Council may choose to direct staff to revert to the prior budget supplemental process.

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES
N/A

Attachments

Budget Supplemental Process Presentation




—Budget Supplemental Process Update

. ey
\ = @ Tlgard
N S 2 - — — \ ;t >

Igl

February 13, 2024

TIGARD




—Overview of Current Budget Supplemental Process

* Finance has brought forth Budget Supplemental requests on a timed
quarterly basis.

* Departments submit requests to Finance for inclusion each qtr.

* Typically, a large number of requests and information coming to
Council at one time.

TIGARD



—Overview of New Budget Supplemental Process

* Quarter 1: Requests that are carry-forwards from the previous budget
year and new requests that were unforeseen at the time of the
budget proposal and adoption. This process is not a change.

* During the rest of the year: Finance will work with requesting
departments to coordinate Budget Supplemental requests to coincide
with the department's council action.

This ad-hoc method will allow for budget supplemental
appropriations to come before Council at the same time without the
need to wait until the next scheduled quarterly supplemental.

TIGARD




—Overview of New Budget Supplemental Process

* Agenda items will include both the departmental action item and the
budgetary supplemental data and resolution.

* This will provide faster implementation and increased fiscal
transparency.

TIGARD



AIS-5390 8.
Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 02/13/2024

Length (in minutes): 15 Minutes

Agenda Title: Renewal Levy - Second Discussion of Ballot Title and Referral
Authored By: Shelby Rihala
Presented By: City Attorney Rihala
Item Type: Motion Requested
Resolution

Public Hearing No
Legal Ad Required?:

Publication Date:

Information
EXPLANATION OF ISSUE
Consideration of ballot title for public safety renewal levy.

ACTION REQUESTED

Staff requests Council adopt the ballot title referring the public safety renewal levy to the May 21, 2024
ballot.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

At its meeting on January 23, 2024, Council provided high level direction of key themes and messages for
the ballot title for the public safety renewal levy. Councilors provided additional comments individually to
the city attorney and Council discussed all those comments received at its meeting on February 6, 2024.
Council’s direction was incorporated into the ballot title that Council is considering tonight.

Tonight’s action would adopt the ballot title for the public safety renewal levy and direct the City elections
officer to take steps necessary to place this proposed measure on the May 21, 2024 ballot.

ALTERNATIVES & RECOMMENDATION

Council could provide additional guidance on the proposed ballot title and return on February 20, 2024 for
action.

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

Attachments
Resolution
Exhibit A
SEL 805




CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL
RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION APPROVING REFERRAL TO THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF TIGARD AT THE
MAY 21, 2024 PRIMARY ELECTION, THE QUESTION OF WHETHER TO RENEW THE PUBLIC
SAFETY LOCAL OPTION LEVY

WHEREAS, the Tigard City Council has determined that the voters of the City of Tigard should be asked to
vote on a five-year local option renewal levy, continuing the rate of $0.29 per $1,000 of assessed value,
beginning July 1, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the proposed renewal levy would continue funding eight patrol officers, one school resource
officer, and providing advanced de-escalation training for all sworn officers in the department.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tigard City Council that:

SECTION 1:

SECTION 2:

SECTION 3:

SECTION 4:

SECTION 5:

SECTION 6:

SECTION 7:

An election is called in the City of Tigard for the purpose of submitting to the legal voters of
the City a five-year local option renewal levy at the continued rate of $0.29 per $1,000 of
assessed value, beginning July 1, 2025. The ballot title to appear on the ballot is attached and
incorporated as Exhibit A.

Election Conducted by Mail. The measure election shall be held on Tuesday, May 21, 2024.
The precinct for the election shall be all of the territory within the corporate limits of the
City of Tigard. As required by ORS 254.465 and ORS 254.470, the measure election will be
conducted by mail by the Washington County Elections Department, according to the
procedures adopted by the Oregon Secretary of State.

Notice of Ballot Title. The City Elections Officer is directed to publish notice of receipt of
the ballot title in the Tigard Times or The Oregonian in compliance with ORS 250.275(5).

Ballot Title. Pursuant to ORS 250.285 and ORS 254.095, the Tigard City Council directs the
City Elections Officer to file a Notice of City Measure Election in substantially the form of
Exhibit 2, with the Washington County Elections Office, unless, pursuant to a valid ballot
title challenge, the Tigard City Council certifies a different Notice of City Measure Election

be filed, such filing shall occur no earlier than the eighth business day after the date on
which Exhibit 2 is filed with the City Elections Officer and not later than March 21, 2024.

Explanatory Statement. Pursuant to ORS 251.345, the Tigard City Council directs the City
Manager to prepare a Measure Explanatory Statement for publication in the county voters'
pamphlet; said statement shall be filed with the Washington County Elections Office at the
same time the Notice of City Measure Election is filed by the City Elections Officer.

Delegation. The Tigard City Council authorizes the City Manager or a designee of the City
Manager to act on behalf of the City of Tigard and to take such further action as is necessary
to carry out the intent and purposes herein in compliance with the applicable provisions of
law.

This resolution is effective immediately upon passage.

RESOLUTION NO. 24-

Page 1



PASSED: This day of 2024.

Mayor - City of Tigard

ATTEST:

City Recorder - City of Tigard

RESOLUTION NO. 24-
Page 2



Exhibit A

Caption: Renewal of Local Option Levy to Maintain Public Safety Services.

Question: Shall Tigard renew the operating levy of $0.29 per $1,000 for public safety services for
five years beginning 20252 This measure renews current local option taxes.

Summary: This measure renews the existing public safety and police services levy that expires June
2025. The original levy paid for 8 patrol officers and 1 school resource officer. The addition of
these officers allowed an increase in minimum patrol staffing for the first time in over 25 years.
Passage of the renewal levy would continue these investments, including:

e Retaining 8 patrol officers to respond to increased calls for service, multiple emergencies at
the same time, and community patrols.

e Maintaining 1 existing school resource officer to enhance student safety.

e Continuing training for all sworn officers in advanced crisis intervention and de-escalation to
address increased mental health crises.

Because this is a renewal, passage of this measure would not increase the current tax rate of $0.29
per $1,000 of assessed value.

The cost of this levy on a typical Tigard home with an assessed value of $318,440 ($542,750 market
value) would be $92.35 per year, or $7.70 per month.

Estimated revenues for each year of the levy:
2025-26: $2,500,000
2026-27: $2,600,000
2027-28: $2,710,000
2028-29: $2,820,000
2029-30: $2,930,000



Request for Ballot Title SEL 805

rev 08/21

Preparation or Publication of Notice OAR 165-014-0005

No later than the 81% day before an election, a governing body that has referred a measure must prepare and file with the local
elections official the text of the referral for ballot title preparation or the ballot title for publication of notice of receipt of ballot title.
This form may be used to file the text of the referral and request the elections official begin the ballot title drafting process or file a
ballot title and request the elections official publish notice of receipt of ballot title.

Filing Information

Election Date Authorized Official

May 21, 2024 Carol Krager

Contact Phone Email Address
503-718-2419 carolk@tigard-or.gov

Referral Information

Title, Number or other Identifier

This Filing is For

[ ] Drafting of Ballot Title Attach referral text. [H] Publication of Notice Ballot title below.

Ballot Title Additional requirements may apply

Caption 10 words which reasonably identifies the subject of the measure.

Renewal of Local Option Levy To Maintain Public Safety Services.

Question 20 words which plainly phrases the chief purpose of the measure.

Shall Tigard renew the operating levy of $0.29 per $1,000 for public safety services for five years beginning
20257 This measure renews current local option taxes.

Summary 175 words which concisely and impartially summarizes the measure and its major effect.

This measure renews the existing public safety and police services levy that expires June 2025. The original levy paid for 8 patrol officers and 1
school resource officer. The addition of these officers allowed an increase in minimum patrol staffing for the first time in over 25 years. Passage
of the renewal levy would continue these investments, including:

e Retaining 8 patrol officers to respond to increased calls for service, multiple emergencies at the same time, and community patrols.
¢ Maintaining 1 existing school resource officer to enhance student safety.
e Continuing training for all sworn officers in advanced crisis intervention and de-escalation to address increased mental health crises.

Because this is a renewal, passage of this measure would not increase the current tax rate of $0.29 per $1,000 of assessed value.

The cost of this levy on a typical Tigard home with an assessed value of $318,440 ($542,750 market value) would be $92.35 per year, or $7.70
per month.

Estimated revenues for each year of the levy:
2025-26: $2,500,000
2026-27: $2,600,000
2027-28: $2,710,000
2028-29: $2,820,000
2029-30: $2,930,000

By signing this document:
- | hereby state that | am authorized by the county or city governing body, or district elections authority to submit this Request
for Ballot Title — Preparation or Publication of Notice.

Signature Date Signed



AIS-5391 9.
Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 02/13/2024

Length (in minutes): 20 Minutes

Agenda Title: Charter Amendment - Second Discussion of Ballot Title and Referral
Authored By: Kathy Nyland
Presented By: City Attorney Rihala
Item Type: Motion Requested
Resolution

Public Hearing No
Legal Ad Required?:

Publication Date:

Information
EXPLANATION OF ISSUE
Consideration of ballot title for City Charter amendment.

ACTION REQUESTED
Staff requests Council adopt the ballot title referring the Charter amendment to the May 21, 2024 ballot.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

At its meeting on January 23, 2024, Council provided high level direction of key themes and messages for
the ballot title for the proposed Charter amendment. Councilors provided additional comments
individually to the city attorney and Council discussed each of those comments received at its meeting on
February 6, 2024. Direction from that meeting was incorporated into the ballot title that Council is
considering tonight.

Tonight’s action would adopt the ballot title for the proposed Charter amendment and direct the City
elections officer to take steps necessary to place this proposed measure on the May 21, 2024 ballot.

ALTERNATIVES & RECOMMENDATION

Council could provide additional guidance on the proposed ballot titles and return on February 20, 2024
for action.

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES

Attachments
Resolution
Exhibit A
Charter - Final - Exhibit B
SEL 805







CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL
RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION APPROVING REFERRAL TO THE ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF TIGARD AT THE
MAY 21, 2024 PRIMARY ELECTION, THE QUESTION OF WHETHER TO ADOPT A NEW CITY
CHARTER

WHEREAS, the City’s Charter, a document that lays out the organization, powers, functions, and procedures
of the city government — has not been comprehensively reviewed and amended since it was adopted in 1962;
and

WHEREAS, in 2023, the City convened the Charter Review Committee—a group of 14 community members
who met over the course of 8 months—to holistically review the City’s Charter and make recommendations
to City Council; and

WHEREAS, the Charter Committee proposed a revised Charter making numerous changes, including
expanding City Council from five to seven members; updating term limits, setting term limits as two
consecutive terms as Councilor and two consecutive terms as Mayor, for a total of no more than four
consecutive terms; and raising the threshold for future Charter changes by initiative; and

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to submit to the voters a ballot measure proposing a new City Charter.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tigard City Council that:

SECTION 1: An election is called in the City of Tigard for the purpose of submitting to the legal voters of
the City a measure adopting a new Charter for the City of Tigard. The ballot title to appear
on the ballot is attached and incorporated as Exhibit A.

SECTION 2: The proposed Charter that is the subject of this referral is set forth in full in the attached
Exhibit B.

SECTION 3: Election Conducted by Mail. The measure election shall be held on Tuesday, May 21, 2024.
The precinct for the election shall be all of the territory within the corporate limits of the
City of Tigard. As required by ORS 254.465 and ORS 254.470, the measure election will be
conducted by mail by the Washington County Elections Department, according to the
procedures adopted by the Oregon Secretary of State.

SECTION 4: Notice of Ballot Title. The City Elections Officer is directed to publish notice of receipt of
the ballot title in the Tigard Times or The Oregonian in compliance with ORS 250.275(5).

SECTION 5: Ballot Title. Pursuant to ORS 250.285 and ORS 254.095, the Tigard City Council directs the
City Elections Officer to file a Notice of City Measure Election in substantially the form of
Exhibit C, with the Washington County Elections Office, unless, pursuant to a valid ballot
title challenge, the Tigard City Council certifies a different Notice of City Measure Election

be filed, such filing shall occur no earlier than the eighth business day after the date on
which Exhibit C is filed with the City Elections Officer and not later than March 21, 2024.

SECTION 6: Explanatory Statement. Pursuant to ORS 251.345, the Tigard City Council directs the City

RESOLUTION NO. 24-
Page 1



Manager to prepare a Measure Explanatory Statement for publication in the county voters'
pamphlet; said statement shall be filed with the Washington County Elections Office at the
same time the Notice of City Measure Election is filed by the City Elections Officer.

SECTION 7: Delegation. The Tigard City Council authorizes the City Manager or a designee of the City
Manager to act on behalf of the City of Tigard and to take such further action as is necessary
to carry out the intent and purposes herein in compliance with the applicable provisions of

law.

SECTION 8: This resolution is effective immediately upon passage.

PASSED: This day of 2024.

Mayor - City of Tigard

ATTEST:

City Recorder - City of Tigard

RESOLUTION NO. 24-
Page 2



Exhibit A

Caption: Adopts New Charter for Tigard City Government

Question: Shall Tigard adopt a new City Charter that retains current form of government, adds two
Councilors, and amends term limits?

Summary: In 2023, the City conducted the first comprehensive review and update to Tigard’s City
Charter since it was adopted in 1962. The City convened a community-led process to review the
Charter and develop recommendations. For 8 months, the 14-person Charter Review Committee
studied city charters from around the state, state and local laws, and other resources to propose
changes for Tigard’s City Charter. The committee ultimately proposed a revised Charter. Key
proposed changes include:

e Expanding City Council from five to seven members.

e Updating term limits, setting term limits as two consecutive terms as Councilor and two
consecutive terms as Mayor, for a total of no more than four consecutive terms.

e Raising the threshold for future Charter changes by initiative.

Other changes would include deferring to state law on areas such as public meetings and elections.
The new charter would keep Tigard’s same form of government. Elected officials would be elected
in the same manner, and laws would be passed in the same way as today.

This measure would not increase Tigard’s tax rate.



Exhibit B

City of Tigard Charter of 2024

PREAMBLE

We the people of Tigard, Oregon, are a community that recognizes the value of all individuals.
We exercise our power to the fullest extent possible under the constitution and laws of the
State of Oregon and enact this home rule Charter.

ARTICLE |
Name and Boundaries

Section 1.1. Title of Enactment. This enactment may be referred to as the City of Tigard
Charter of 2024.

Section 1.2. Name. The municipality of Tigard, Washington County, Oregon, continues to be a
municipal corporation with the name “City of Tigard.”

Section 1.3. Boundaries. The City includes all territory within its boundaries as they now exist
or are legally modified in the future.

ARTICLE 2
Powers of the City

Section 2.1. Powers of the City. The City has all powers expressly or impliedly granted or
allowed by the constitutions, statutes, and common law of the United States and State of
Oregon as fully as if this Charter specifically enumerated each of those powers.

Section 2.2. Construction. This Charter is liberally construed so that the City may exercise fully
all powers possible under this Charter and under United States and Oregon law.

Section 2.3. Where Powers Vest. All powers of the City are vested in the City Council, except
as otherwise provided by law or this Charter.

ARTICLE 3
Council

Section 3.1. Council Composition. The Council is comprised of a Mayor and six Councilors
nominated and elected from the City at-large.

Section 3.2. Oath. Before carrying out the duties of office, the Mayor and each Councilor must
subscribe and swear or affirm an oath to the effect that the person will faithfully discharge to

City of Tigard Charter of 2024 1



the best of the person’s ability the duties of the office being assumed and will support the
constitutions and laws of the United States and the State of Oregon and the charter and
ordinances of the City of Tigard. The oath must be administered and attested to by a notary
public or other person duly authorized to administer oaths. The oath may be taken up to 30
days prior to the scheduled date of assuming office.

Section 3.3. Mayor. Except as otherwise provided in this Charter, the Mayor is the elected,
public policy head of City government. The Mayor is a voting member of Council and has no
veto authority. In exercising the powers of the Mayor, the Mayor:

a) Has authority over the agenda for Council meetings.

b) Presides over and facilitates Council meetings as the chair, preserves order, enforces
Council rules, and determines the order of business.

c) Signs the authorized writings and records of Council decisions.

d) Appoints members of City boards and committees, as provided by Council rules.

Section 3.4. Council President. Council will elect a Council President at its first meeting each
year. The Council President will perform the duties of the office of Mayor in the Mayor’s
absence and may perform other duties of the Mayor at the Mayor’s request. In the event the
Mayor is unavailable to serve, the Council President will serve as the Mayor Pro Tempore. If
the Council President vacates the position, the Council will elect a Council President to serve in
that position until the next Council President is elected pursuant to this Section.

Section 3.5. Terms. The Mayor and each Councilor’s term of office is four years and
commences on the first day of January after the election to office. One of the new positions
created by this 2024 Charter will be elected to a four-year term and the other to a two-year
term in the 2024 general election. Council members currently serving at the time this 2024
Charter is adopted will continue to serve the remainder of their terms.

Section 3.6 Term Limits. A Mayor may not be elected or appointed to more than two
consecutive terms, and a Councilor may not be elected or appointed to more than two
consecutive terms, for a total of no more than four consecutive terms on Council. A partial
term only applies to a Council member’s term limit calculation if the Council member is elected
or appointed to a term greater than three years. Terms are considered “consecutive” if there is
less than a two-year break from the date last in office to the first date of the Council member’s
next term.

Section 3.7. No Interference. No Council member may directly or indirectly coerce or attempt
to coerce the City Manager, City Attorney, or Municipal Court Judge, or a candidate for the
office of City Manager, City Attorney, or Municipal Court Judge, in the appointment or removal
of a City employee, in an administrative decision of the officer, or in otherwise executing the
officer’s powers and duties. Council will determine the appropriate penalty for violation of this
prohibition, up to and including removal from office. A due process hearing of the full City
Council and a unanimous vote of all Council members, with the exception of the member who

City of Tigard Charter of 2024 2



is the subject of the vote, is required to remove a Council member. A majority vote of Council
is required to impose any other penalty. In Council meetings, Council members may discuss or
suggest matters with the officer relating to City business.

Section 3.8. Council Rules. Every two years, Council will adopt ground rules by resolution.
Ground rules will include a code of conduct, process for the selection of board and committee
members, and will govern proceedings of the Council where they do not conflict with law or the
provisions of this Charter. Council will determine, by majority vote, the appropriate penalty for
a violation of the ground rules, up to and including a resolution of censure and removal from
Council assignments. A violation of the ground rules will not be considered a basis for
challenging the validity of any Council decision.

Section 3.9. Compensation. The Council will adopt, by resolution or ordinance, an
independent review process for determining the compensation of the Mayor and Councilors.

ARTICLE 4
City Officers

This Charter establishes three City offices appointed and removed by a majority of Council—a
City Manager, a City Attorney, and Municipal Court Judge. No member of Council may assign or
direct the work of any of the following offices:

Section 4.1. City Manager. The City Manager is the administrative head of the City
government. The City Manager is responsible to the City Council for the proper leadership and
administration of all City business including serving as the Budget Officer; appointing and
removing all City employees except the Municipal Court Judge and City Attorney; organizing
departments; and carrying out all City operations, policies, resolutions, and ordinances.

Section 4.2. City Attorney. The City Attorney is the chief legal officer for the City. The City
Attorney must be an active member in good standing of the Oregon State Bar. The City
Attorney appoints, manages, and may remove any employees who work exclusively in and for
the City Attorney’s office.

Section 4.3. Municipal Court and Judges. The Tigard Municipal Court is established and
continues to operate as the City’s Municipal Court.

a) All areas within the City and areas outside the City as permitted by state law are within
the territorial jurisdiction of the court. The Municipal Court has subject matter
jurisdiction over every offense created by City ordinance and to the fullest extent
allowed by law over all misdemeanors and violations defined and made punishable
under state law, unless limited by City ordinance.

b) All municipal court judges, including judges pro tempore, must be active members in
good standing of the Oregon State Bar. The Presiding Judge exercises general
supervision over the judicial functions of the Municipal Court and its judges and has
authority over the dockets and assignment of cases.

City of Tigard Charter of 2024 3



ARTICLE 5
Elections

Section 5.1. City Elections. City elections must conform to state law, unless this Charter or City
ordinances provide otherwise. All elections for City offices are nonpartisan.

Section 5.2. Qualification of Electors. Every person who is a resident of the City and who
qualifies as a legal voter under state law may vote in a City election.

Section 5.3. Eligibility. Each member of Council must be a qualified elector under state law,
registered to vote in the City of Tigard, and have continuously resided within the City for at
least one year immediately before the date of election or appointment to office. Except when a
state trial court has jurisdiction over the matter, the Council is the final judge of the election
and eligibility of its members.

Section 5.4. Conduct of Election. Elections to the office of Mayor and Councilor will be held at
the general election, except as otherwise provided by this Charter for special elections to fill
vacancies. The candidate receiving the highest number of votes for the office of Mayor is
elected to the office. The three candidates receiving the highest number of votes for the office
of Councilor are elected to the office. If a Council position for less than a full four-year term is
on the ballot, the candidate receiving the highest number of votes for that position is elected to
the office.

Section 5.5. Vacancies in Office. The office of Mayor or Councilor becomes vacant upon the
Mayor or Councilor’s:

a) Death;

b) Resignation from the office;

c) Recall from office;

d) Ceasing to reside in the city;

e) Ceasing to be a qualified elector under state law or this Charter;

f) Adjudicated incompetence;

g) Conviction of a felony;

h) Absence for 30 days from regular meetings of the Council without the consent of the
Council and upon a declaration of vacancy approved by unanimous vote of all
Council members except the member who is subject of the vote; or

i) Removal pursuant to Section 3.7 of this Charter.

Section 5.6. Filling Vacancies. In the event the office of Mayor or Councilor becomes vacant
before the normal expiration of the term, the Council may fill the vacancy for the remainder of
the term by election or appointment. A special election may only be called if the election will
be held at least one year before the term would otherwise expire.

City of Tigard Charter of 2024 4



ARTICLE 6
Council Meetings; Ordinances

Section 6.1. Rules and Meetings. The Council may adopt rules regarding Council meetings to
the extent the rules do not conflict with law or this Charter. The Council will meet at a time and
place designated by its rules and may meet at other times in accordance with its rules and state
law.

Section 6.2. Quorum. A majority of the Council members is a quorum to conduct business. In
the event of a vacancy pursuant to Section 5.5 of this Charter, or loss of contact during a state
or federal state of emergency within the City, the quorum is reduced accordingly. Every Council
member who is present must be counted for the purpose of constituting a quorum, even if the
Council member does not vote on one or more issues.

Section 6.3. Record of Proceedings. A record of Council meetings must be kept in a manner
prescribed by state law and the Council’s rules.

Section 6.4. Voting. Except as otherwise provided in this Charter, the express approval of a
majority of the Council members present and voting is necessary for any Council decision.

Section 6.5. Ordaining Clause. The council exercises its legislative authority by adopting
ordinances. The enacting clause for all ordinances must state “The City of Tigard ordains as
follows:”

Section 6.6. Adoption. Adoption of an ordinance requires:

a) A duly noticed public hearing on the ordinance;
b) Reading the ordinance, by title only, in an open Council meeting; and
c) Arroll call vote whether to adopt the ordinance.

Section 6.7. Record of Vote. After the adoption of an ordinance:

a) The Mayor must sign the ordinance; and

b) The City Recorder must attest to the adoption and date of adoption of the ordinance
and enter into the Council minutes the vote of each member of Council on the
ordinance.

Section 6.8. Effective Date of Ordinances. Ordinances normally take effect on the 30th day
after adoption or on a later day provided in the ordinance. An ordinance may take effect as
soon as adopted or on another date less than 30 days after adoption if the ordinance contains
an emergency clause.

City of Tigard Charter of 2024 5



ARTICLE 7
Public Improvements; Debt

Section 7.1 Improvements. The procedure for making, altering, vacating, or abandoning a
public improvement will be governed by state law.

Section 7.2 Special Assessments. The procedure for levying, collecting, and enforcing special
assessments for public improvements or other services charged against real property will be
governed by ordinance.

Section 7.3 Debt Limit. City indebtedness may not exceed debt limits imposed by state law.

ARTICLE 8
Miscellaneous Provisions

Section 8.1. Ordinance Continuation. All ordinances and other enactments consistent with
this Charter, and in force when this Charter takes effect, remain in effect until amended or
repealed.

Section 8.2. Pending Matters. All rights, claims, causes of actions, duties, contracts, and legal
administrative proceedings that exist when this Charter takes effect continue and are
unimpaired by this Charter, except as modified pursuant to the provisions of this Charter, and
in each case will be maintained, carried on, or dealt with by the City department, office, or
agency appropriate under this Charter.

Section 8.3. Severability. The terms of this Charter are severable. If any provision of this
Charter is held invalid by a court, the invalidity does not affect the validity of the remaining
parts of the Charter.

Section 8.4. Time of Effect. This Charter takes effect 30 days after the day on which it is
approved by a majority of voters, and except as otherwise provided is operative July 1, 2024.
The City may take any action before this Charter’s operative date that is necessary to enable
the City on or after the operative date to exercise all duties, functions, and powers conferred on
the City by this Charter.

Section 8.5. Saving Clause. All Charter provisions adopted before this Charter takes effect
continue in force and effect until repealed.

Section 8.6. Amendments. Amendments to this Charter proposed by initiative must be held at
a primary or general election.

Section 8.7. Repeal. All Charter provisions adopted before this Charter takes effect are
repealed when this Charter becomes operative on July 1, 2024.

City of Tigard Charter of 2024 6



Request for Ballot Title SEL 805

rev 08/21

Preparation or Publication of Notice OAR 165-014-0005

No later than the 81% day before an election, a governing body that has referred a measure must prepare and file with the local

elections official the text of the referral for ballot title preparation or the ballot title for publication of notice of receipt of ballot title.

This form may be used to file the text of the referral and request the elections official begin the ballot title drafting process or file a
ballot title and request the elections official publish notice of receipt of ballot title.

Filing Information

Election Date Authorized Official

May 21, 2024 Carol Krager

Contact Phone Email Address
503-718-2419 carolk@tigard-or.gov

Referral Information

Title, Number or other Identifier

This Filing is For

[ ] Drafting of Ballot Title Attach referral text. [H] Publication of Notice Ballot title below.

Ballot Title Additional requirements may apply

Caption 10 words which reasonably identifies the subject of the measure.

Adopts New Charter for Tigard City Government

Question 20 words which plainly phrases the chief purpose of the measure.

Shall Tigard adopt a new City Charter that retains current form of government, adds two Councilors, and
amends term limits?

Summary 175 words which concisely and impartially summarizes the measure and its major effect.

In 2023, the City conducted the first comprehensive review and update to Tigard’s City Charter since it was adopted in 1962.
The City convened a community-led process to review the Charter and develop recommendations. For 8 months, the 14-person
Charter Review Committee studied city charters from around the state, state and local laws, and other resources to propose
changes for Tigard’s City Charter. The committee ultimately proposed a revised Charter. Key proposed changes include:

¢ Expanding City Council from five to seven members.

¢ Updating term limits, setting term limits as two consecutive terms as Councilor and two consecutive terms as Mayor, for a
total of no more than four consecutive terms.

eRaising the threshold for future Charter changes by initiative.

Other changes would include deferring to state law on areas such as public meetings and elections. The new charter would
keep Tigard’s same form of government. Elected officials would be elected in the same manner, and laws would be passed in
the same way as today.

This measure would not increase Tigard’s tax rate.

By signing this document:
- | hereby state that | am authorized by the county or city governing body, or district elections authority to submit this Request
for Ballot Title — Preparation or Publication of Notice.

Signature Date Signed



AIS-5417 10.
Business Meeting

Meeting Date: 02/13/2024

Length (in minutes): 40 Minutes

Agenda Title: Hall Boulevard Corridor Concept Final Report
Authored By: Dave Roth
Presented By: Dave Roth, Principal Transportation Planner
Item Type: Motion Requested

Resolution

Public Hearing No
Legal Ad Required?:

Publication Date:

Information
EXPLANATION OF ISSUE

Adopt the Hall Boulevard Corridor Concept Design Report (CDR) to establish community and
city priorities for future roadway investments and improvements

ACTION REQUESTED

Tigard teammates recommend adoption of the Hall Boulevard Corridor Concept Design Report.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

For several years, the City of Tigard has considered what it would mean to take ownership over the Oregon
Department of Transportation (ODOT)-owned and -operated three-mile segment of SW Hall Boulevard
(OR-141) between SW Locust St. and SW Durham St. through a process known as Jurisdictional Transfer.
This would transfer ownership and maintenance responsibility to the city in perpetuity.

Representing a significant milestone in this ongoing effort, the Hall Boulevard Corridor Concept Design
Report (CDR) documents the results of a robust year-long community engagement process in which
community members identified a range of needed upgrades and safety improvements to make Hall
Boulevard safe and functional for all, regardless of age, ability, or mode of travel.

The CDR builds on previous work, including:

¢ 2016: Hall Boulevard Condition Assessment Report

¢ 2020: Revised Hall Boulevard Condition Assessment Report

¢ 2020: Tigard-ODOT Memorandum of Understanding and Shared Work Plan

¢ 2022: Revised Tigard-ODOT Memorandum of Understanding and Shared Work Plan

¢ 2023: Adoption of 2023-25 Tigard Council Goals (Strategy 4.1: Identify & secure funding to
complete the Hall Boulevard jurisdictional transfer)

¢ 2023: Hall Boulevard State of Good Repair Report

¢ 2023: Passage of House Bill 2793 establishing the State Jurisdictional Transfer Advisory Committee

The Hall Boulevard Corridor CDR sets the future vision for SW Hall Boulevard within Tigard and forms
the basis on which future detailed design and engineering decisions will be made in advance of roadway



construction. Further, adoption of the CDR allows Tigard teammates to fulfill a specific requirement
defined in House Bill 2793: to submit a “Community Vision Plan” for the future use of a facility under
consideration for transfer in ownership from the state to a local agency.

Implementation of the overarching vision and the 31 CDR recommended upgrades and safety
improvements will typically occur in one of three ways over time, though any such implementation requires
completion of a jurisdictional transfer from the state before these are advanced.

e Iirst, as development and redevelopment of parcels with frontage on Hall Boulevard occurs,
individual projects will be required to provide proportional infrastructure improvements as
determined through the land use approval process.

e Second, improvements will occur incrementally as planned projects identified in the 2040
Transportation System Plan (TSP) and the city’s Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) are completed.

e Finally, larger corridor-scale improvement projects would be funded and implemented by the
securing of external state and/or federal funding sources.

With the passage of House Bill 2793, the newly formed Jurisdictional Transfer Advisory Committee will
review applications for highway transfers every other year. During even-numbered years starting in
September 2024, the committee will recommend three transfers for funding to the Joint Committee on
Transportation.

With the Hall Boulevard visioning process now complete, Tigard teammates will continue working toward
an application for state funding to complete the needed state of good repair and safety improvements as
recommended in the CDR to facilitate the transfer of ownership of Hall Boulevard to the city. The scope
and scale of proposed improvements will be determined through continued negotiations with the Oregon
Department of Transportation.

Additional steps to be taken at a future date after the CDR is adopted include:

e Amendments to the Tigard 2040 Transportation System Plan to add CDR-recommended projects,

e Amendments to Tigard’s Community Development Code (Chapter 18.910.030) to make roadway
cross-section and right-of-way requirements consistent with the CDR, and

e Prepare and submit an application for transfer.

Dates of Previous and Potential Future Considerations

e October 20, 2020: Council Briefing: Hall Boulevard Jurisdictional Transfer
e July 11, 2023: Council Briefing: Hall Boulevard Draft Concept Design Report Briefing

Public Involvement

e May 4, 2022: Tigard Transportation Advisory Committee (TTAC) Meeting

e May 4, 2022: Hall Boulevard walking tour

e Fall 2022: Corridor vision stakeholder meetings (3)

e November 16, 2022: First corridor vision public open house and online survey
e April 5, 2023: TTAC Meeting

o April 6, 2023: Second corridor vision public open house and online survey

e October 30, 2023: Hall Blvd walking tour and Tigard Public Library meeting

Impacts (Community, Budget, Policies and Plans/Strategic Connection)

o City of Tigard Strategic Plan 2020-25
e Vision: an equitable community that is walkable, healthy, and accessible for everyone



e Tigard City Council Goals 2023-25
e Action 2.1: Prioritize carbon responsibility in the City of Tigard operations, projects, and
policies
e Action 4.1: Identify & secure funding to complete the Hall Boulevard jurisdictional transfer
e Action 4.3: Increase funding to expand connectivity & support an active, healthy, and
accessible community
e Tigard 2040 Transportation System Plan (2022)
e Policy 1: Provide a safe, comfortable, and connected transportation system for all users,
especially pedestrians and other vulnerable users.
e Tigard Complete Streets Policy (2019)
e Vision: Tigard is a vibrant and healthy community where people of all ages and abilities can
travel safely, efficiently, and comfortably on a well-connected and optimized multi-modal
network of roads, trails, and paths.

ALTERNATIVES & RECOMMENDATION

Council could choose not to adopt the Concept Design Report. However, doing so could delay progress
toward an eventual jurisdictional transfer of Hall Boulevard. Council may also adopt the Concept Design
Report with suggested revisions.

ADDITIONAL RESOURCES
N/A

Attachments
CDR Resolution
Hall CDR PPT
Hall CDR




CITY OF TIGARD, OREGON
TIGARD CITY COUNCIL
RESOLUTION NO. 24-

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISION CONCEPT DESIGN
REPORT

WHEREAS, the city’s adopted strategic vision calls for Tigard to be “an equitable community, that is walkable,
healthy, and acceptable to all;”” and

WHEREAS, Policy 1 of the 2040 Transportation System Plan requires the city to “provide a safe, comfortable,
and connected transportation system for all users, especially pedestrians and other vulnerable users;” and

WHEREAS, the city’s Complete Streets Policy envisions Tigard as a “vibrant and healthy community where
people of all ages and abilities can travel safely, efficiently, and comfortably on a well-connected and optimized
multi-modal network of roads, trails, and paths;” and

WHEREAS, Southwest Hall Boulevard within the City of Tigard is not maintained to a standard of quality that
is acceptable to the community; and

WHEREAS, Southwest Hall Boulevard within the City of Tigard is not built to a standard of design that safely
and comfortably serves roadway users of all ages and abilities; and

WHEREAS, Action 4.1 of the 2023-25 Council Goals is to “[i]dentify; and secure funding to complete the Hall
Boulevard jurisdictional transfer;” and

WHEREAS, House Bill 2793 created a jurisdictional transfer advisory committee and application process
requiring local agencies to submit an adopted “community vision plan” to be eligible for consideration for state
funding; and

WHEREAS, the Council desires to formalize the community’s vision for a future Southwest Hall Boulevard in
the city through adoption of the Hall Boulevard Corridor Vision Concept Design Report and to have this
document inform future policy direction, planning efforts, and amendments to city codes and standards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Tigard City Council that:

SECTION 1: The Tigard City Council Adopts the Hall Boulevard Corridor Vision Concept Design Report
attached hereto as Exhibit A and made part of this Resolution.

SECTION 2: This Resolution is effective immediately upon passage.

PASSED: This day of 2024.

RESOLUTION NO. 24-
Page 1



Mayor - City of Tigard

ATTEST:

City Recorder - City of Tigard

RESOLUTION NO. 24-
Page 2



Hall Boulevard Corridor Visioning Project:
Final Concept Report

Tigard City Councll
February 13, 2024 @

e CITYOF
The 5 E's — Tigard's Community Promise: Equity e Environment e Economy e Engagement e Excellence Tlga rd



Agenda

The Hall Boulevard Vision

Implementation

Jurisdictional Transfer Process

Next Steps

Recommendation

CITY OF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard's Community Promise: Equity e Environment e Economy e Engagement e Excellence



What is the Hall Blvd
Vision?

Defines a range of needed
upgrades and safety
Improvements required to allow
residents and visitors of all ages
and abllities to move throughout
and across the corridor to meet
their daily travel needs

e CITYOF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard’'s Community Promise: Equity e Environment ¢ Economy e Engagement e Excellence




Washington Sguare

i‘é 0

- -

A Vision Serving Multiple
Goals

* Mobility for all
* Promote and ensure safety

o -

Tigefd Triangl

N2

S |
* r
. -

)

» Downtown
==

#

 Connecting neighborhoods and EEGEIRITRLGILEEE "
places many places. N I

h‘ :
iy i j
= T l;".P-’ e LT P U
]
=T,

» Catalyst for desired development T
* Liability > Asset = T A AL

S /- \

1
> ! N 4
» '
" = Major Roads ™ LY - |
= = Trails
i Railroad A

CITY OF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard's Community Promise: Equity e Environment ¢ Economy e Engagement e Excellence



(-1

CITY OF TIGARD STRATEGIC TIGARD CITY COUNCIL
PLAN VISION GOALS + ACTIONS

Planning Context

2.1 Prioritize carbon responsibility

Tigard: an equitable community that

is walkable, healthy, and accessible [T (Y o LRI (i i
for everyone projects, and policies

41 Identify + secure funding to
(Source: City of Tigard Strategic .
complete the Hall Boulevard

» Strategic Plan Vision s

4.3 Increase funding to expand

connectivity + support an active,

* Tigard Council Goals & Actions

* Tigard Complete Streets Policy

TIGARD'S COMPLETE STREETS VISION

Tigard is a vibrant and healthy community where
people of all ages and abilit travel safely,
efficiently and comfortably on a well-connected and
optimized multi- modal network of roads, trails, and

paths.

(Source:

Implementation Plan 2018)

e CITYOF
Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard's Community Promise: Equity e Environment e Economy e Engagement e Excellence



Planning Context (cont.)

+ 2040 Transportation System Plan (TSP) |
* ODOT and Tigard shared workplan

» "“State of Good Repair” data collection
and estimates

» 2023 Legislative session: HB2793

- - Transportation System Plan

| i'f"j‘ e » ol Adopted January 2022
) . i

e CITYOF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard’'s Community Promise: Equity e Environment ¢ Economy e Engagement e Excellence




Creating the Vision

1. Existing conditions 6. Concept refinement
Key stakeholder interviews 7. TTAC & Council input

3. Open House #1 & public 8. Final concept vision and
Input map report

4. Concept development

5. Open House #2 & public
Input map

CITY OF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard’'s Community Promise: Equity e Environment ¢ Economy e Engagement e Excellence



Creating the Vision: Timeline

Proposed Concept .
Feasible high-level concept Draft Concept Final Concept

Design Report Design Report

Stage Existing Concept

Conditions Alternatives based on City values + public
tnput

Public Stakeholderfll Online Open Online Open TTAC, City Citv Council
Comment. B | terviews House 1 House 2 Council y
Opportunities

Winter Summer 2024 B\Minter

Hall Blvd Hall Blvd
Walking Tour Walking Tour



Proposed Improvements

» Consistent cross-section
* 31 location-specific recommendations
. Several overlapping with already planned TSP projects

* Provides guidance on implementation strategy and segment
prioritization

CITY OF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard's Community Promise: Equity e Environment e Economy e Engagement e Excellence



Proposed Improvements (cont.)

* Typical cross section:
. Two travel lanes
. Continuous sidewalks

. Continuous, separated
bike facilities

 Improved bus stops

* Improved lighting

Proposed typical c:ros ééctior; %o Hall Boulevard.

@ e Stormwater facilities

CITY OF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard’'s Community Promise: Equity e Environment ¢ Economy e Engagement e Excellence



Hall Boulevard
LOCUST 5T, =,

Proposed Improvements (cont.)

MNorth Segment

» Organized into 4 segments between Locust
St and Durham Rd

- North — Central A — Central B - South

Central Segment (4)

", Central Segment (B)

* Consistent

- Maintains 2 travel lanes and a center turn lane MLALE
outside of intersections s ~J
e Multimodal T
- Continuous ped and bike facilities, enhanced
crossings, improved bus stops, improved oumatro, U B
S Intersection operations = A
= N - '

e CITYOF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard’'s Community Promise: Equity e Environment ¢ Economy e Engagement e Excellence



Proposed Improvements (cont.)

 Other recommendations

ISLAND AND RECTANGULAR RAPID
FLASHING BEACONS

. Consideration of roundabouts at key ~  “TEEAEEE o

Intersections
- Implement planned TSP projects
. Pedestrian crossing improvements
. Protected intersections

- Consideration of a two-way shared use - .
path between the library and N —
downtown — Nl

CITY OF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard’'s Community Promise: Equity e Environment ¢ Economy e Engagement e Excellence




How is the Vision Implemented?

 Corridor improvements are typically implemented in three ways:
- Incrementally through development (development-funded frontage improvements)

- Incrementally through completion of planned TSP and/or Capital Improvement Plan
(CIP) projects

- Or, through larger scale corridor projects most often funded through multiple
sources (external funding)

 Planning level cost estimate for all recommendations
- Design, right of way, utilities: $14M

. Engineering and construction: $91M

e CITYOF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard’'s Community Promise: Equity e Environment ¢ Economy e Engagement e Excellence



Successes To-Date

» Congressionally-delegated spending

. Awarded $3M in ped crossing improvements (2022)

.- Pending $1M request for ped crossing improvements (2023)
» 2023 Oregon legislative session

- HB2793 “JT Process Committee” passed

- $3M contribution for pedestrian safety improvements

* Oregon Community Paths grant (2023)

. Tigard awarded funding to rebuild Fanno Creek Trail crossing

e CITYOF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard’'s Community Promise: Equity e Environment ¢ Economy e Engagement e Excellence




Jurisdictional Transfer Process

 House Bill 2793
 Jurisdictional transfer committee

» 3 facilities recommended for transfer every other year (starting
September 2024)

 Application requires completion of “Community Visioning
Plan”

CITY OF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard's Community Promise: Equity e Environment e Economy e Engagement e Excellence



What Does Adoption of the CDR Accomplish?

* Formally documents and memorializes the
community-driven vision for a future Hall Boulevard

 Provides the city with clear design direction in
preparation for future investments

* Fulfills a requirement of the HB 2793 jurisdictional
transfer process

CITY OF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard's Community Promise: Equity e Environment e Economy e Engagement e Excellence



Next Steps

» Continue coordinating with ODOT on shared work plan and
MQOU terms for transfer

« HB 2793 Application

- Develop scope of repairs and improvements to be included in
application for transfer

. Develop operations and maintenance plan

* Make necessary amendments to TSP and Tigard Community
Development Code to codify CDR recommendations.

CITY OF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard’'s Community Promise: Equity e Environment ¢ Economy e Engagement e Excellence



Question before Council

 Shall Tigard City Council resolve to adopt the
Hall Blvd Corridor Vision Concept Design
Report?

CITY OF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard's Community Promise: Equity e Environment e Economy e Engagement e Excellence



Recommendation

e Staff recommends Council adopt the CDR

CITY OF

Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard's Community Promise: Equity e Environment e Economy e Engagement e Excellence



Discussion and Q&A

Dave Roth

Principal Transportation Planner

daver@tigard-or.gov

e CITYOF
Tlga rd The 5 E's — Tigard's Community Promise: Equity e Environment e Economy e Engagement e Excellence


mailto:daver@tigard-or.gov

N

HALL BOULEVARD
CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT

CONCEPT DESIGN REPORT | January 2024



ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Dave Roth,
Principal Transportation Planner

Joe Wisniewski,
City Engineer

Alta Planning + Design. Derek Abe and Philip Longenecker,
Consultant Team

Thanks to Tigard’s Transportation Advisory Committee (TTAC) and
members of the Tigard community who provided invaluable input
during the engagement process.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 4

1. PURPOSE

WHY HALL BOULEVARD AND WHY NOW? 6

Purpose 7

Jurisdictional Transfer 8

Tigard and ODOT’s Shared Work Plan and
Memorandum of Understanding 8

Tigard’s Transportation

System Plan 9
The Metro Area’s Urban Arterial Problem 9
2.DESIGN PRINGIPLES & POLICY

DESIGN PRINCIPLES & POLICY 10
Tigard’s Complete Street Policy i

Tigard’s Transportation Safety Action Plan (2019) 12

Policy Context: Guiding Principles for

Hall Boulevard 13
Themes from Tigard’s Goals and Policies 14
J. EXISTING GONDITIONS

EXISTING CONDITIONS 16
Condition Summary 20

Hall Boulevard’s Functional Classification and
Existing Design 22

A. PLANNING PROGESS

PLANNING PROCESS 28
Key Takeaways from Public Engagement Efforts 30
PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS 32
From Plan to Project: Throughline from the TSP 33
A New Vision for Hall Boulevard 33
High-Level Concept Shaped by City Values and
Public Input 33
Segment and Perspective Views 36
Why Three Lanes? Wouldn’t More Lanes

Be Better? 45
Key Intersections 46
Recommendations Table 48
IMPLEMENTATION 52
North Segment (Locust Street to Highway 99) 53
Central Segment (A) (Highway 99 to Commercial
Street) 54
Central Segment (B) (Commercial Street to

Omara Street) 54
South Segment (Omara Street to Durham Road) 55
Cost Estimate 56
Prioritization 56

1. APPENDIX

APPENDIX

58



EXEGUTIVE SUMMARY



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Currently owned and maintained by the Oregon
Department of Transportation (ODOT), Hall Boulevard
is a key transportation corridor within the City of
Tigard. The road provides access and mobility to

a broad cross-section of the local and regional
population and is adjacent to several different and
varied land uses. It is a key roadway for several
nearby schools, including Metzger, James Templeton
and Durham Elementary, Twality Middle, and Tigard
High School.

Today, however, the road no longer meets the
needs or expectations of a community that has
grown around it. Aligned with Tigard’s Strategic
Vision priorities focusing on increasing walkability,
connectivity, and equity, the Corridor Visioning
Project will support the city’s goal of improving and
ultimately taking over jurisdictional ownership of the
road.

The Hall Boulevard Corridor Visioning Project
provides a high-level concept for a future roadway
that safely and comfortably accommodates people
of all ages and abilities, regardless of how they
choose to travel. This corridor plan describes the
improvements required to make Hall Boulevard a
complete street; such improvements suggest that
Tigard will need to take over jurisdictional ownership
of the road from the Oregon Department of
Transportation (ODOT).

The proposed vision is the culmination of an existing
conditions analysis, multiple focus groups, and two
rounds of public engagement. This plan recommends
a typical cross section along Hall Boulevard to
maintain the two general travel lanes with a center
turn lane, and expand the total roadway footprint

to include consistent, grade separated walking and
biking facilities, pedestrian-scale lighting, enhanced

bus stops, and tree canopy (right).

The Hall Boulevard Corridor

Visioning Project is engaging with

the community to create a plan for an
improved Hall Boulevard so that people
of all ages and abilities can walk, ride
transit, roll and drive wherever they
need to go. This corridor plan will
support the City of Tigard’s efforts

in securing funding needed to make
improvements and ultimately to take
over jurisdictional ownership of the
road from the Oregon Department of

Transportation.

In addition to typical proposed cross sections
for each study segment, the following pages
detail recommended improvements for specific
intersections, including traffic signal changes,
curb reconfigurations, and pedestrian crossing

enhancements.

The cost to rebuild Hall Boulevard as proposed in
this plan is estimated to be approximately $61.1M, or
roughly double that of the cost to bring the roadway
up to a State of Good Repair. This does not include
the soft costs of engineering or design work, nor
does it include the costs of moving utilities and
acquiring right-of-way. These additional costs can
vary but our initial estimates place the total cost
including these expenses at over $100M.

Proposed typical cross section for Hall Boulevard.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXECUTIVE SUMMARY




1.
WHY HALL BOULEVARD
AND WHY NOW?



WHY HALL BOULEVARD AND WHY NOW?

Purpose

Hall Boulevard, also known as OR-141, is a major
north-south arterial corridor running through Tigard
and providing connections to the communities of
Beaverton, Portland, Durham, Tualatin, and points
beyond. The road sees a diversity of users traveling
on foot, aided by mobility devices, on two wheels,
via public transit, and by personal vehicle to meet
their daily transportation needs. After decades of
disinvestment, the Hall Boulevard of today impedes
safe and efficient travel options for Tigard residents,
particularly those most in need of protection from
automobile traffic.

The Oregon Department of Transportation (ODOT)-
owned and operated Hall Boulevard travels along

a range of frontages, through various land use
contexts, and provides critical access to opportunity
for some of Tigard’s most vulnerable neighborhoods.
Although the roadway is currently within ODOT’s
jurisdiction, Tigard is working with the State to fund
the transfer in ownership of Hall Boulevard to the
City. With the City of Tigard as owner and operator of
the roadway, the City would have greater control over
the physical conditions and design of Hall Boulevard
that affect so many of its residents.

Conditions along the corridor vary considerably
and for non-motorized users, their ability to safely
travel along the corridor is limited by missing and
substandard infrastructure. Drivers can get where
they need to go but experience severely degraded
pavement and congestion in a few locations during
peak hours. People walking and rolling face a
patchwork of sidewalks, with existing sections often
in poor condition and many sections completely
missing. People walking and rolling also have

few improved roadway crossing opportunities
throughout the corridor. Similarly, people riding a bike

experience disappearing bike lanes, and bike lanes
that do exist are not built to a standard that support
all ages and abilities riding.

In recent years, potential opportunities (and
constraints) along segments of the corridor have
been studied extensively as part of planning

for the Southwest Corridor and transit-oriented
development, the Washington Square Regional
Center Plan update, and the current Downtown
Reimagined project.

The Hall Boulevard corridor has

tremendous potential to connect

people to places by linking Tigard’s

land use goals with its multimodal

transportation objectives.

The intent of the Hall Boulevard Corridor Visioning
Project is to document existing conditions, needs,
and constraints, and develop conceptual design
options and planning level cost estimates the City
will use to secure funding needed to improve Hall
Boulevard and to create a mechanism to transfer
the roadway from ODOT to the City. Realizing the
community’s vision for a future Hall Boulevard will
boost safe transportation choices, improve options
for healthy and active lifestyles, and increase
economic prosperity by expanding access to goods,
services, education, and employment.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | WHY HALL BOULEVARD AND WHY NOW?




Jurisdictional Transfer

The City of Tigard is committed to redesigning and
rebuilding Hall Blvd to a standard of safety and
quality that meets the needs of everyday users of the
roadway. Significant funding combined with a transfer
in ownership of the roadway are prerequisites to
future improvements.

The key to unlocking a transfer of Hall Boulevard

is funding. With sufficient funding allocated to

Hall Boulevard, Tigard would work with ODOT to
develop an Intergovernmental Agreement outlining
the terms of a transfer that would be brought to the
Oregon Transportation Commission who is ultimately
responsible for approving transfers of state highways
to local jurisdictions.

The terms of the transfer would ensure that the State
invests enough money to bring the roadway into
what is called a “State of Good Repair.” This prevents
the City of Tigard from being saddled with the costs
required to update the roadway to a basic standard
of quality when taking it over. However, the City of
Tigard wants to upgrade Hall Boulevard beyond
simply repaving the status quo. The corridor visioning
project identifies what additional improvements

are needed to make Hall Boulevard a corridor that
functions for users of all ages and abilities, promotes
safety, connects neighborhoods, and serves as a
catalyst for new development opportunities along the
corridor.

For more information on this subject, refer to Metro’s
Regional Framework for Highway Jurisdictional
Transfer Study (2020).

Tigard and ODOT’s Shared Work Plan
and Memorandum of Understanding

Upon completion of its 2019 Condition Assessment
study, the City of Tigard initiated discussions with
ODOT regarding needed repairs and a desire

for future City ownership of the roadway. In late
2020, the two agencies signed a Memorandum of
Understanding that 1) demonstrates commitment
to pursue a path forward for jurisdictional transfer
of Hall Boulevard, and 2) ensures that each party
coordinates investments on the roadway. The
Memorandum of Understanding provides a shared
work plan for each agency to deliver on the two
stated objectives.

Between 2020 and the drafting of this report in
2023, City of Tigard staff and ODOT staff held
regular meetings and work sessions making
significant progress toward stated Memorandum of
Understanding objectives. Progress to date includes
raising visibility of Hall Boulevard to the community
and decision makers, applying for and securing
several million dollars in funding for incremental
safety improvements, reducing the posted speed
limit on a key section of Hall Boulevard from 40mph
to 30mph, completing the additional necessary asset
condition study, and Tigard’s leading of an effort

to secure state funding through a 2023 legislative
funding request.

Hall Boulevard looking south toward City Hall. Ownership
of Hall Boulevard will transfer from ODOT to the City of
Tigard.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | WHY HALL BOULEVARD AND WHY NOW?



https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2020/12/14/Metro-Highway-Jurisdictional-Transfer-Final-Report-November2020.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2020/12/14/Metro-Highway-Jurisdictional-Transfer-Final-Report-November2020.pdf

Tigard’s Transportation
System Plan

The 2040 Transportation System Plan (TSP) was
initiated in 2020 and responds to a new strategic
vision for Tigard’s future, which emphasizes
developing a multimodal transportation system that
is walkable, healthy, sustainable, and accessible

for everyone. This TSP serves as an important
long-range planning tool for Tigard to ensure its
transportation system can meet community needs,
realize the City’s strategic vision, and conform to
state and regional policies.

The TSP discusses Hall Boulevard in the
following ways:

Hall Boulevard will be a key north-south

route between neighborhoods within Tigard,
providing a critical function for accessing
downtown, the Tigard Transit Center, the
Tigard Triangle, and numerous civic uses,
including the library. With a potential for
jurisdictional transfer of this road, the City

has an interest in enhancing this corridor with
improved sidewalks and bikeways between
SW Omara Street and Pacific Highway (pg 34).

There is a need to update the characterization
of Hall Boulevard to reflect the jurisdictional
transfer from ODOT to the City of Tigard (pg
60).

Pacific Highway and Hall Boulevard are the

primary access routes to the downtown area
(Pg 32).

The need to reexamine the alignment of
Scoffins Street/Hunziker Street at Hall
Boulevard (pg 23).

Pedestrian and bicycle crossing opportunities
at the intersection of Commercial Street and
Hall Boulevard should be improved (pg 33).

The Metro Area’s Urban Arterial Problem

As an ODOT-owned and operated urban arterial, the
problems with Hall Boulevard are not unique within
the greater Portland metropolitan area. Originally
constructed to function as rural “farm to market”
routes, roads like Hall Boulevard have seen very
limited investment while the cities surrounding them
have steadily grown and urbanized. In its December
2020 Regional Framework for Highway Jurisdictional
Transfer Study, Oregon Metro identified eleven
‘promising’ state-owned transfer candidate corridors
across the region.

Portions of Hall Boulevard are included as one of
the 11 “promising” state-owned transfer candidate
corridors across the region. Unsurprisingly, portions
of Hall Boulevard are included among the promising
transfer candidates scoring high in both a “technical”
and a “readiness for transfer” rubric. In addition to
identifying candidate roadways for transfer, ODOT
and Metro’s study outlines best practices and the
legal process required to successfully transfer a
roadway from the State to a local jurisdiction.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | WHY HALL BOULEVARD AND WHY NOW?




3
DESIGN PRINGIPLES
& POLICY



Tigard’s Complete Street Policy

Adopted in 2019, The Complete Streets Policy for the City of Tigard guides its work to

create a safe, efficient, and comfortable transportation system for all users, regardless

of age or ability.

6 GUIDING PRINCIPLES:

Serve All Users: The City will
develop and manage rights-of-way
to promote access and mobility for
all users, with a particular focus on
enhancing the safety of vulnerable
road users.

Provide Interconnected Networks:
The City will strive to provide

a connected network of safe,
accessible, and convenient travel
routes for non-motorized travel,
including off-street trails and
pathways for bicycling and walking.

Use Best Practices and Innovative,
Context-Sensitive Design: The City
will use current and emerging best
practices in transportation network
and facility design to serve the
multimodal transportation needs

of all users. It will also use context-
sensitive design to address unique
local conditions and constraints.

Support Land Use Planning
Goals: The City will design and
develop a transportation network
that supports the land use

goals and policies of the Tigard
Comprehensive Plan.

Internal and Jurisdictional
Coordination: The City will

foster partnerships with local
businesses, developers, community
organizations, and regional
agencies to develop seamless
transportation facilities and
accommodations.

Measure Performance: The City
will track and report on policy
implementation performance using
indicators that reflect transportation
safety, efficiency, mobility,
accessibility, and experience for

all users.

The policy applies to all transportation facilities within the public rights-of-way, on

public property, and/or within a public access easement. It also applies to the routine

planning, design, implementation, operation, and maintenance of all transportation

infrastructure.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | DESIGN PRINCIPLES & POLICY

1"



Tigard’s Transportation Safety Action
Plan (2019)

The City of Tigard Transportation Safety Action

Plan (TSAP) documents the findings from a citywide
transportation safety analysis that examined crashes
involving pedestrians, bicyclists, and drivers. The
TSAP describes crash trends and patterns, prioritizes
locations for safety improvements, and presents
potential safety treatments for locations with the most
potential to reduce fatal and severe injury crashes in
the city, some of which involve Hall Boulevard. The
TSAP identifies potential safety improvements and
creates an avenue for the City to pursue ODOT All
Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) and other grant
funding to enhance transportation safety.

The following intersections were ranked among the
highest priority intersections in Tigard given their
history of crashes and severity:

Highway 99 and Hall
Boulevard

Hall Boulevard and
Durham Road

People waiting for the signal to change while walking across Highway 99 at Hall Boulevard. The City of Tigard
Transportation Safety Action Plan places this intersection as the highest priority in the city.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | DESIGN PRINCIPLES & POLICY




Policy Context: Guiding Principles for Hall Boulevard

B4

CITY OF TIGARD STRATEGIC TIGARD CITY COUNCIL
PLAN VISION GOALS + ACTIONS

Tigard: an equitable community that 2.1 Prioritize carbon responsibility

is walkable, healthy, and accessible in the City of Tigard operations,

for everyone projects, and policies

4.1 Identify + funding t
(Source: City of Tigard Strategic entity = secure funding to

Plan 2020-2025) complete the Hall Boulevard

jurisdictional transfer

4.3 Increase funding to expand
connectivity + support an active,

healthy, accessible community

(Source: City Council Goals 2023-2025)

TIGARD’S COMPLETE STREETS VISION

Tigard is a vibrant and healthy community where
people of all ages and abilities can travel safely,
efficiently and comfortably on a well-connected and
optimized multi- modal network of roads, trails, and

paths.

(Source: Tigard Complete Streets Policy
Implementation Plan 2019)

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | DESIGN PRINGIPLES & POLIGY

13



Themes from Tigard’s Goals and Policies

A range of plans already adopted by the City of Several key policy themes emerged from Tigard’s

Tigard and its partners set an important foundation goals and policies, which served as guiding
for the Hall Boulevard Corridor project. This section principles for the corridor visioning project:

provides a policy synthesis of five documents that

impact transportation system planning and design in 1. Walkable
Tigard:
a. Safe and comfortable for all ages and
abilities
» Tigard Complete Streets Policy Implementation b, Multimodal: encouraging pedestrian and
Plan (2019) bicycle travel

» City of Tigard Transportation Safety Action Plan 2. Connected

(2019)

» Council Goals (2023-2025)

»  City of Tigard Transportation System Plan

(2022)

»  City of Tigard Strategic Plan 2020 — 2025 b.

»  City of Tigard Comprehensive Plan (2007)

a. Connecting residents to parks,
schools, transit, businesses, and other
neighborhoods

3. Equitable

a. Supporting environmental and community

health

Addressing access disparities for low-

income communities and communities

(See the Appendix for more information)

GUIDING PRINCIPLES FOR THE HALL CORRIDOR VISION:

[ J
;Q WALKABILITY

Safety and comfort for people
walking or bicycling is an essential
component of the Hall Boulevard
Corridor Visioning Project. While
creating a multimodal system is a
goal in all City transportation policies,
“walkability” is especially emphasized
in Tigard planning goals. A walkable
transportation system is one that is
safe and comfortable for people of all
ages and abilities.

¢
83 CONNECTEDNESS

Improving connections for all
transportation system users is
another critical goal for the corridor
visioning project. City policies

call for providing access to jobs,
schools, and essential services with
convenient and affordable travel
options. The Strategic Plan aims to
make parks available to all residents
within a 10-minute walk. Increased
connectivity supports economic
vibrancy, which will be essential

for the development of the Tigard
Triangle, downtown, and Washington
Square Regional Center.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | DESIGN PRINGIPLES & POLICY

of color

‘m@ EQUITY

A key goal for the Hall Boulevard
Corridor Visioning Project is to
ensure that the planning process is
inclusive and that the transportation
outcomes serve everyone, especially
those from historically marginalized
and underserved communities.

City plans often reference this goal
in the context of accessibility and
affordable travel options, as well

as supporting environmental and
community health.




A NOTE ON THE REGION’S APPROACH TO SAFETY

In the greater Portland region, traffic fatalities and severe injuries are on the rise, and the region

is not on track to meet its targets. People walking are more likely to die in crashes than people

using other modes of transportation.

A majority of traffic deaths occur in a
relatively small number of locations, mostly
along arterial roads. Making these streets
and intersections safer is critical to reducing
crashes in the region. While the vast
majority of crashes in the region involve
only motorists, bicyclists, motorcyclists,

and especially pedestrians are vulnerable
travelers who face significantly higher risk of
death when they are involved in crashes.

In 2018, the Metro Council and Joint Policy
Advisory Committee on Transportation
adopted a target to reach zero traffic deaths
and serious injuries by 2035. The effort

to make this goal a reality is called Vision
Zero, and it includes implementing proven
safety countermeasures such as speed
management, medians, crosswalk visibility
enhancements, bicycle lanes, sidewalks,
and more.

According to Metro’s latest safety report,

which documented trends on traffic fatalities
and serious injuries between 2015-2019, the
region is not on track for achieving its Vision
Zero goals.

1 Portland metropolitan area 2019 traffic fatalities and
serious injuries annual performance report. Metro.
February 2021. https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/
default/files/2021/03/04/Metro-safety-annual-
performance-report-2015-2019.pdf

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | DESIGN PRINCIPLES & POLICY

The average annual humber of fatalities
increased from 62 in 2015 to 83 in 2019,
an increase of 34 percent. Between 2018
and 2019, the average number of fatalities

increased 10 percent from 75 to 83.

Pedestrian fatalities are increasing more
than other fatal crashes. Forty percent of
people killed in 2019 were pedestrians, up

from 35 percent in 2015.

The average annual humber of non-
motorized (pedestrians and bicyclists)
fatalities and serious injuries increased from
113 in 2015 to 127 in 2019, an increase of

12 percent.

Fatality rates per vehicle miles traveled also
increased from 0.6 fatalities per 100 million
vehicle miles traveled in 2015 to 0.8 in

2019, a 33 percent increase.

Not only do the proposed improvements
in the Hall Boulevard Corridor Visioning
Project follow the established design
principles and policies adopted by the
City of Tigard, but they align with Metro’s
approach to traffic safety in the region and

aim to reduce traffic deaths of all types.

15


https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2021/03/04/Metro-safety-annual-performance-report-2015-2019.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2021/03/04/Metro-safety-annual-performance-report-2015-2019.pdf
https://www.oregonmetro.gov/sites/default/files/2021/03/04/Metro-safety-annual-performance-report-2015-2019.pdf

J.
EXISTING GONDITIONS



EXISTING GONDITIONS

Hall Boulevard is an important multimodal MAP 1: Project Extent and Key Areas
north-south route in the city that plays a critical
role in connecting downtown with residential

neighborhoods and future developments in the ’ Hall Boulevard

Tigard Triangle. It is heavily utilized by many different £ ocy
Washington Square

types of travelers, for different trip purposes, along a
-
-
range of frontage and land use contexts. s 1N .
@%b \
1 e, \
1 %""4'4.,
\ /
\ ’
~ 7’
* ~ - :
™ -_— - .
\ Tigafd Triangl
. AR
\
.. Downtown \
‘ - == \ 1
* ' >
P \ ’
~ 7’
-,

0 q.zs _-0.5MILES @
1 See the Appendix for more information

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXISTING CONDITIONS




The roadway is classified as an arterial street in the
City’s TSP. The roadway also intersects with key
pieces of Tigard’s multiuse path and trail network,
such as the Fanno Creek Trail and Cook Park. In
addition to serving many walking and biking trips,
Hall Boulevard is an important transit corridor.
Multiple schools are near the roadway, including
Metzger Elementary, West Side Christian High
School, Twality Middle School, James Templeton
Elementary School, Tigard High School and Durham
Elementary School, which makes Hall Boulevard
important in serving school-related trips.

AVERAGE DAILY TRAFFIC
» Hall Boulevard (north of McDonald St): 13,500

» Hall Boulevard (between McDonald St and
Bonita Rd): 17,000

By comparison:

» Bonita Rd: 17,500
» McDonald St: 12,500

»  Greenburg Rd: 17,500

For more traffic count information, see the full existing
conditions analysis in the appendix.

MAP 2: Project Extent and Key Destinations

School

Cook Park :

x/\g\\

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXISTING CONDITIONS

Hall Boulevard

! 1 1 -
q.25 " 0.5MILES
4

b




The visioning project extent, which extends from MAP 3: Study Segments Along Project Extent
Locust St to Durham Road, contains multiple

intersections that play a prominent role in the

transportation system, including Locust St, Highway Hall Boulevard

99, Hunziker Street/Scoffins Street, McDonald FERLST ST P
Street, Bonita Road, and Durham Road. While each
segment of Hall Boulevard has its own opportunities
and constraints, the overall roadway can be N ST
conceptualized into three segments with somewhat

similar land use and transportation contexts: North

(Locust St to Highway 99), Central (Hwy 99 to \
Commercial St plus Commercial St to Omara St), and X

South (Omara St to Durham Road). N U
HWY 99

Central Segment (A)

7
"\, Central Segment (B)

MCDONALD ST

B . BONITA RD

South Segment ;

DURHAM RD J

0 0.25 _-0.5MILES @

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXISTING CONDITIONS




plo)

Condition Summary

The condition assessment found that deferred
maintenance and rapidly evolving construction costs
have left much of the corridor needing significant
work to bring Hall Boulevard to a State of Good
Repair. The percentage of assets that need to be
brought to a State of Good Repair, that can be
quantified, are as follows: 81 percent of roadway
pavement, 98 percent of curb ramps, 65 percent of
storm drainage facilities, and the Ash Creek Bridge.
The cost to address these corridor-wide deficiencies
and bring Hall Boulevard to a State of Good Repair
was estimated to be approximately $28.4 million

(if constructed in 2020). The assessment contains
detailed information for Hall Boulevard on everything
from traffic volumes to stormwater facilities. This
report serves as an important foundation for the Hall
Boulevard visioning project.

According to Tigard’s 2019 Condition Assessment
study, the percentage of assets that need to be
brought to a State of Good Repair, that can be
quantified, are as follows:

8]%

ROADWAY
PAVEMENT

ASH CREEK
BRIDGE
REPLAGEMENT

NEEDED
b

65°%

STORM DRAINAGE

FACILITIES

ODOT recently reached a similar conclusion through
its own condition assessment work on Hall Boulevard
as documented in a State of Good Repair report. The
City of Tigard and ODOT have agreed upon a total
State of Good Repair investment need of $30 million
for the 3-mile section of Hall Boulevard between SW
Locust and SW Durham Streets.

Following page, top left: Hall Boulevard at Bonita Road.
This intersection is missing key infrastructure like ADA
accessible curb ramps, sidewalks, and high-visibility
crosswalks. This intersection experiences some of the
highest peak hour traffic volumes on the corridor.

Middle: Looking south on Hall Boulevard south of
McDonald Street.

Bottom: vegetation obscures speed limit sign.
Right: Hall Boulevard north of Oak St. Lack of sidewalks

and safe crossings are common in the northern extent of
the project area.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXISTING CONDITIONS




HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXISTING CONDITIONS 21




Hall Boulevard’s Functional Classification and Existing Design

Hall Boulevard is classified as an arterial by the TSP.
Arterials are designed for higher volumes, but tend
not to be major regional travel ways.

The TSP describes a multimodal transportation
system as one that is accessible, walkable, and
healthy for everyone. Instead of solely designing
for cars, the focus has shifted to strengthening
connections, access, and opportunities for all
residents with a strong emphasis on equity, safety,
and multimodal accommodation, particularly for
walking and bicycling modes. These updates,
recommended by the TSP, are reflected in the
proposed improvements in the next section.

Hall Boulevard is currently built with outdated

design standards, with infrastructure that varies from
segment to segment (see right). At the time of writing,
the City of Tigard is updating its engineering design
standards for consistency with the city’s development
code and TSP.

Existing Roadway Facilities

» Designed for 45 mile per hour speeds
> 17-13" wide travel lanes
» 14’ parking lanes

Existing Bikeway Facilities

> 4-6’ wide, intermittent bike lanes

Existing Pedestrian Facilities

» 5-10" wide, intermittent sidewalks

A typical existing cross section of Hall Boulevard in the
northern segment, from Locust Street to Highway 99.

A typical existing cross section of Hall Boulevard in the
central segment, from Highway 99 to Commercial Street.

A typical existing cross section of Hall Boulevard in the
central segment, from Commercial Street to Omara Street.

A typical existing cross section of Hall Boulevard in the
south segment, from Omara Street to Durham Road.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXISTING CONDITIONS




CONSTRAINTS

Improvements are needed for

. The following constraints were identified in the
Hall Boulevard to meet arterial o - ) )
existing conditions analysis. The memorandum in

standards. Hall Boulevard has the the Appendix provides maps and more detailed

potential to be a premier active information related to this analysis.
transportation corridor within

the city’s existing and planned » Hall Boulevard lacks complete infrastructure for
networks. - Hall Boulevard all users. Gaps remain in the sidewalk network,

Corridor Visioning Project Existing both in terms of missing segments and the

Conditions Memorandum provision of ADA accessible curb ramps.

Most existing sidewalks are 6ft wide and do

—— not have a landscaping strip separating the
walkway from traffic, which reduces the level

of comfort for people walking. More recently
installed sidewalks, such as those between
Langtree Street and Ashford Street, are 8 ft
wide and are more comfortable. Sidewalks on
the east side of Hall Boulevard between Ross
Street and Murdock Street have landscaping
strip separation but abruptly end before
reaching the bus stop to the north.

» Improving sidewalk connections (and
expanding the roadway footprint generally)
may be more costly in areas with significant
grade differences, such as the ditch north of
Sattler Street on the west side, and the low-
lying areas around the Hall Boulevard/Bonita

Road intersection.

» Despite serving the frequent service Route 76,
some bus stops along Hall Boulevard remain
inaccessible to all users. These stops include
the intersections of Murdock Street and
McDonald Street (northbound).

»  With the exception of the Fanno Creek Trail

The roadway footprint expands dramatically south of Crossing and the rectangular rapid flashing

Bonita Road. However, the sidewalks connections end beacon (RRFB) just north of Highway 99, the
before reaching the intersection (looking south).

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXISTING CONDITIONS




only marked crosswalks exist at signalized
intersections. The distances between these
crosswalks range from roughly 900 ft (Wall
Street to the Fanno Creek Trail crossing) to
well over a half mile (north of Highway 99). The
lack of crossings for people walking and biking
limits the east-west connectivity of these

networks at Hall Boulevard.

A few intersections that already have marked
crosswalks with signals have documented
concerns regarding safety. These include the
Fanno Creek Trail, Highway 99, and Durham
Road.

Hall Boulevard has complete bike lanes
along the project extent, but these lanes are
insufficient except for the strongest and most
fearless of riders. The bike lanes range from
4-6 ft, buses mix with bike lanes at all stops,
and there are three notable floating bike lanes
that cross right turn pockets: the northbound
approach of Hall Boulevard/Bonita Road,

the northbound approach of Hall Boulevard/
Knoll Drive, the southbound approach of

Hall Boulevard/Burnham Street, and the
northbound/southbound approach of Hall
Boulevard/Hwy 99. Each of these conditions
contribute to a less comfortable environment

for people biking.

Available right-of-way appears to be most
constrained in the Central segment, between
Highway 99 and the Fanno Creek Trail.
Proposed bikeway facility types may need to
be different in this segment than the North and
South segments. Tradeoffs will be difficult here
without expanding the available right-of-way

because the downtown area is a critical area

In addition to the more detailed constraints
above, the visioning project will need to
account for the following factors that add

complexity to Hall Boulevard:

The combined role that McDonald Street,
Hall Boulevard, and Bonita Road have in

east/westbound traffic.

The sensitive environmental context around

Fanno Creek.

The railway crossing between Burnham

Street and Commercial Street.

The offset skew of the Hunziker Street-

Scoffins Street-Hall Boulevard intersection.

The inter-jurisdictional nature of Highway
99/Hall Boulevard and the Highway 217
Crossing. In these locations, the Hall
Boulevard Corridor Visioning Project will
likely need to focus less on design specifics

and more on recommendations for ODOT.

for transportation connections and should have
A storm water grate at the base of a curb ramp, located at

some of the most robust facilities for all users.
the intersection of Hall Boulevard and Spruce Street.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXISTING CONDITIONS




The following opportunities were identified in the
existing conditions analysis. The memorandum in
the Appendix provides maps and more detailed
information related to this analysis.

That Hall Boulevard connects parts of the city
with distinct land use contexts is a strength of
the corridor. Increasing multimodal connectivity
between residential areas and commercial
districts would greatly improve the corridor’s
ability to serve different trip types and users as
well as fulfill City goals. Hall Boulevard has the
potential to connect people to parks, schools,
the Tigard Public Library, City Hall, the WES
commuter rail, the future Southwest Corridor
light rail, Washington Square, and the Tigard

Triangle.

The Hall Boulevard Corridor Visioning Project
is highly relevant to the interests of downtown

Tigard. Collaborating and coordinating with

the ongoing Downtown Reimagined project
presents an opportunity to improve the
community’s perception of downtown in terms

of accessibility.

Completing sidewalks on both sides of Hall
Boulevard is a significant opportunity for the
city’s pedestrian network, which designates

Hall Boulevard as a major pedestrian corridor.

Inter-neighborhood biking and walking

trips: Along Hall Boulevard, there are many
neighborhood cut-through paths, which
increase the east-west connectivity for people
walking and biking. These paths could serve
as natural locations for mid-block crossings
between signalized intersections. Transit stops

could be relocated to align with these paths.

Other potential crosswalk improvements that

emerged from the existing conditions analysis
include the north leg of McDonald Street/Hall
Boulevard and the north leg of Omara Street/

Hall Boulevard.

The Woodruff Bridge offers a unique connection from Hall Boulevard to the southern portions of the Fanno Creek Trail.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXISTING CONDITIONS

25




Traffic operational improvements inlcuding
realignment of the Hunziker/Scoffins
intersection and operational improvements at
major intersections such as Durham Rd, Bonita
Rd, and McDonald St.

For the Fanno Creek Trail Crossing, there are
multiple opportunities to improve the safety
for people walking and biking. One or more
RRFBs may be more effective than the existing
pedestrian hybrid beacon. Depending on

the bikeway design, curb extensions may be
possible to reduce the crossing distance for
pedestrians. There may also be space for a

refuge island.

The future bikeway along Hall Boulevard has
the potential to create safe connections to
other major links in the bicycle network. First,
the future Fanno Creek Trail extension on the
southeast corner of Hall Boulevard/Durham
Road will need to be accommodated in the
visioning plan. Durham Road, Sattler Street,
Bonita Road, McDonald Street, Commercial
Street, Hunziker Street, Oak Street, and
Locust Street are all designated major street
bikeways. Bike turn boxes and advanced
queuing facilities should be considered at
these intersections to help people riding bikes

make turns to and from those corridors.

The section of Hall Boulevard between
Langtree Street and Ashford Street is
particularly wide. If the rest of the corridor
isn’t widened to match this width, then the
extra space here could be repurposed into a
more highly protected bikeway, stormwater

catchment basin, or both.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXISTING CONDITIONS

Several right turn pockets could be
reevaluated as part of the Hall Boulevard
Corridor Visioning Project. These include

the northbound approach of Hall Boulevard/
Bonita Road, the northbound approach of Hall
Boulevard/Knoll Drive, and the northbound/
southbound approach of Hall Boulevard/Hwy
99. The most likely of these to be eliminated

would be at Hall Boulevard/Knoll Drive.

The most constrained area is the central
segment between the Fanno Creek Trail
Crossing and Highway 99. Expanding right-of-
way between Burnham Street and the railroad

may best come from the City’s public works

property.

There is a significant amount of space on the
Highway 217 bridge that could be repurposed
for more protected biking and walking facilities.

The intersection of Highway 99 and Hall
Boulevard is a key intersection in Tigard and is
currently challenging to navigate while walking
and biking, and could benefit from improved

facilities.




This page intentionally left blank.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | EXISTING CONDITIONS (27




A,
PLANNING PROGESS




*Monthly check-ins and project updates with

PLANNING PROGESS

I+

were held throughout the process.

In the summer of 2022, the project team began the corridor visioning project with a
comprehensive existing conditions analysis.* This involved inspecting the roadway, compiling
past plan recommendations, research, and data analysis. The findings are summarized in the next
section, and the full report can be found in the appendix of this document.

In the fall of the same year, the project team conducted a series of virtual stakeholder meetings to
develop a more robust understanding of the issues and experiences people have while traveling
along Hall Boulevard. The first meeting engaged leaders from each of the schools within a quarter
mile of the corridor and discussed how Hall either facilitates or hinders school-based travel.

The second meeting brought multiple government agencies to the table to identify the ways in
which Hall Boulevard impacts the delivery of their services. The third meeting brought together
community members who are involved in various advisory committees or non-profit organizations
with interests in the corridor. The findings from these meetings were incorporated into the existing
conditions report. Finally, the project team additional outreach at the El Tigre Festival in October
to alert people of the upcoming open house.

The first public open house for the corridor visioning project was held the evening of November
16, 2022. The purpose of the open house was to share findings from the existing conditions
analysis and to hear directly from community members about their experiences traveling along
Hall Boulevard. The public was also invited to provide comments on an online mapping tool that
was open for two weeks after the open house, to allow for input from people who were not able
to attend the meeting. The mapping tool allowed users to submit general comments about the
project and draw points and lines on the map relating to destinations and the barriers they face.
This feedback served as a complement to the more data-driven existing conditions analysis and
was used to improve the project team’s understanding of the corridor.

During the winter months of 2022-2023, the project team used feedback from the first open
house to develop various concepts for Hall Boulevard. The team compiled various roadway
configurations that could be implemented at varying degrees of impact to the public right-of-way.
The team developed these concepts while also balancing other factors, such as emphasizing
bikeway connections to key amenities along the corridor, strategic spacing of pedestrian
crossings, and considering where vehicle congestion occurs along the corridor. This process
resulted in an aspirational cross section for Hall Boulevard along four key segments of its extent.
These cross sections, in addition to single-location improvement recommendations, were referred
to as the proposed concepts.

In the spring of 2023, the project team hosted an in-person open house at the Tigard Town Hall to
gather feedback on the proposed concepts. Like the fall open house, the spring open house also
included an online input map that participants could submit comments on for up to two weeks.
This feedback was used to refine the concepts further and modify some of

the recommendations.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PLANNING PROCESS




Key Takeaways from Public Engagement Efforts

The following themes emerged from the individual
stories, ideas, and recommendations we received What We Heard
throughout our stakeholder interviews, open houses,
and public outreach: “| drive south on Hall to the library, usually
accompanied by small kids. If there were

» There are limited crossing opportunities, a more protected bike lane, we could bike
there.” — Participant comment from Open
House #1

especially near bus stops.

> Visibility issues — lighting needs improvement,

“Contiguous sidewalks from Durham to

especially for people who ride transit.
downtown are crucial. We live in 79th/

> There are multiple sidewalk gaps, which makes Ashford neighborhood with kids and
it hard for families to access the library, parks, pets and walking up Hall toward the city
and schools. and library or south toward the parks is

difficult and dangerous (Fanno Creek Trail

» People drive too fast, especially a concern for from Bonita is not always reliable or lit

students walking and biking to school. and doesn't always feel safe. STRONGLY

) o ) support sidewalks, more lighting, brush
» The current bicycle facilities do not provide
enforcement and perhaps a couple more

enough separation from traffic.
g P lit crosswalks on South Hall.” — Participant

» The Fanno Creek Bridge is too narrow to comment from Open House #2

accommodate all modes. .
[In regard to the proposed protected

» Highway 99 and Hall Boulevard is a intersection at Locust St] This is a route

challenging intersection to navigate while to an elementary school, so a protected

walking and biking. intersection here will make children a lot
safer.” — Participant comment from
» Much of the congestion on Hall Boulevard Open House #2

between Bonita Road and McDonald Street
“NB Hall to WB McDonald regularly backs

up in the center median to the church,

can be attributed to people traveling east-

west along these roads, as there isn’'t a similar ' '
sometimes almost near Bonita. Lengthen

the signal please! SB Hall and WB/EB
McDonald here never really back up that

alternative in this direction.

badly, they can wait an extra 30 seconds
to clear the turn pocket.” — Participant
comment from Open House #2

30 HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PLANNING PROCESS




Above: the online mapping tool from the first round of public engagement. The first open house asked participants to provide
comments on the destinations they travel to along Hall Boulevard and the barriers they face. This feedback helped support
the existing conditions analysis.

Above: the online mapping tool from the second round of public engagement. The second open house asked participants to
respond to the proposed improvements and design concepts for the corridor. This feedback helped to refine the proposed
improvements and design concepts.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PLANNING PROCESS (31




J.
PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS



PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

From Plan to Project: Throughline from
the TSP

As noted in the City’s TSP, “Transportation planning
in Tigard is shaped by both opportunities and
constraints. Projected growth over the next 20
years, both in Tigard and throughout the region, will
increase travel demand and associated congestion,
but increasing roadway capacity is unlikely to solve
these problems.

Tigard’s Strategic Vision emphasizes developing a
multimodal transportation system that is accessible,
walkable, and healthy for everyone. To achieve

this vision, the focus has shifted to strengthening
connections, access, and opportunities for all
residents with a strong emphasis on equity, safety,
and multimodal accommodation, particularly for

walking, transit, and bicycling.

This shift recognizes that our streets play host to
more than just cars. We can do this by reviewing
speed limits; completing the system for walking
and bicycling; and making the most of 2-3 lane
cross sections where planned five-lane sections
would drastically increase costs while negatively
impacting neighborhoods and conditions for active

transportation.” !

A New Vision for Hall Boulevard

The following recommendations integrate the
information gathered by the project team through
our existing conditions analysis, which were

refined through public input. They reflect nationally

1 Tigard On the Move: City of Tigard Transportation
System Plan. Chapter 4 Modal Plans. Pg 23. 2022.

recognized best practices? in transportation planning

and will advance the City’s stated goals and policies.

The recommendations assume that the roadway
footprint will need to be expanded in order to
accommodate all modes, and in places where right-
of-way acquisition is not possible, will deviate from
the typical cross section. The recommendations
also assume that they will be completed in phases in
coordination with ODOT funding per the terms of the

Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA).

High-Level Concept Shaped by City
Values and Public Input

The proposed vision for a typical cross section
along Hall Boulevard is to maintain the two general
travel lanes with a center turn lane, and expand the
total roadway footprint to include consistent, grade
separated walking and biking facilities, pedestrian-
scale lighting, enhanced bus stops, and tree canopy

(see rendering on following page).

Within each study segment, this cross section will
vary slightly, with the north segment being the most
constrained spatially, and the central segments
building in additional features to connect key
destinations in those areas. In addition to typical
proposed cross sections for each study segment, the
following pages detail recommended improvements
for specific intersections, including traffic signal
changes, curb reconfigurations, and crossing
enhancements. Detailed descriptions of each
improvement can be found in the recommendations

table at the end of the chapter.

2 Guidelines for Designing Livable Steets and Trails.
Metro 2020. https.//www.oregonmetro.gov/tools-partners/
guides-and-tools/guidelines-designing-livable-streets-and-
trails

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS




A NEW VISION FOR HALL BOULEVARD

Above: The proposed vision for a typical cross section along Hall Boulevard is to maintain the two general travel lanes with a
center turn lane, and expand the total roadway footprint to include consistent, grade separated walking and biking facilities,

pedestrian-scale lighting, enhanced bus stops and tree canopy.

Consistent: Each segment will feature two The vision assumes that the roadway

travel lanes with a center turn lane footprint will need to be expanded in order to
accommodate all modes, and in places where
right-of-way acquisition is not possible, deviate

Multimodal: Continuous biking and walking ) )
from the typical cross section.

facilities, improved transit stops, enhanced

Crossings
The recommendations also assume that they
will be completed in phases in coordination

Environmentally sound: Street trees and ) .
with ODOT funding per the terms of the

stormwater infrastructure throughout )
memorandum of understanding.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS




Hall Boulevard

LOCUST-ST r\

HWY 99 U

e

MCDONALD ST | -

&
12

DURHAM RD J

North Segment

Central Segment (A)

N

Central Segment (B)

BONITA RD

South Segment +

0 0.25 _-0.5MILES @

The recommendations in this chapter are organized
into four study segments, due to the need to break
the central segment into two parts. The north
segment is from Locust Street to Highway 99. The
first central segment, Central A, is from Highway 99
to Commercial Street. The second central segment is
from Commercial Street to Omara Street. The fourth
study segment is the South segment, from Omara

Street to Durham Road.

The proposed improvements along these extents
have slight variations due to their land use context,
available right-of-way, location of utilities, and
proximity to key destinations.

General Recommendations

Maximize tree canopy to the extent possible. This includes
planting in the center median when the center turn lane is
not needed.

Utilize permeable pavements where possible.

Maximize pedestrian-scale lighting along the corridor and
prioritize bus stops.

Identify locations for stormwater treatment facilities and
allocate sufficient funding to their design.

An enhanced crossing facility would use high-visibility
continental crosswalk markings' and appropriate signage.
Potential improvements could include pedestrian refuge
islands, leading pedestrian intervals, curb extensions,
advanced stop bars and/or additional lighting.

Implement designs at driveway entrances that minimize
conflicts between cars and people walking and biking.
(ex: moving access to side streets over time through
redevelopment and/or consolidating access to minimize
the number of driveways and turning movements.)

1 High-visibility crosswalks (sometimes called
“continental-style” crosswalks) have thick lines parallel
to traffic flow that allow drivers to see the crosswalk from
further away.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS




36

Segment and Perspective Views

© © 0 0000000000000 00000000000000 00000000

4/ %e2le o 6 6 6 6606000 e e e e oo 0000000000000 e

park

School

....................................

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

Locust Street
Protected Intersection

North Segment:
Locust Street to Highway 99*

Oak Street
Enhanced Crossing Opportunity

Spruce Street
Enhanced Crossing Opportunity

Steve Street

Enhanced crossing opportunity
with potential implementation of a
rectangular rapid flashing beacon
(RRFB).

Pfaffle Street
Traffic Signal

Route 78 Bus Stop North of
Highway 99
Right-of-Way Constraints

*To see more details about these
recommendations, see the full
recommendations table at the
end of this chapter.




Note that some locations such as the rendering of
Spruce St and Hall Blvd shown above, will deviate
slightly from the typical cross section as needed.

Locust Street to Highway 99

The north segment of the Hall Boulevard
corridor visioning project extends from
Locust Street to Highway 99. Today,

the typical cross section found on Hall
Boulevard along this extent includes two
general traffic lanes with a center turn
lane. There are intermittent sidewalks and
substandard (<6ft) striped grade-level bike
lanes. The proposed vision for a typical
cross section along Hall Boulevard in

the north segment is to maintain the two
general traffic lanes with a center turn lane,
and expand the total roadway footprint

to 80ft wide to include consistent, grade
separated walking and biking facilities,
pedestrian-scale lighting and tree canopy.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS




............................ Highway 99
Protected Intersection

............................. Highway 99
Remove Slip Lane

......................... South of Highway 99
Driveway access improvements

© 00000000000 0s0s000000000s 00 00 Centra|ASegment:
Highway 99 to Commercial
Street*

........................... Knoll Drive

Enhanced crossing opportunity
with potential implementation of a
rectangular rapid flashing beacon
(RRFB).

Downtown
Tigard

........................... Knoll Drive
Remove Northbound Right Turn Lane

...... - SEAREEEREEERRERE Scoffins Street
Traffic Signal Changes and

Intersection Realignment. Study
Future Southwest

/ Corridor Light
Rail Station

feasibility of roundabout.

...................................... Commercial Street

Enhanced Crossing Opportunity
*To see more details about these

recommendations, see the full
recommendations table at the

end of this chapter.

38 HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS




Hwy 99 to Commercial Street

The central segment of the Hall Boulevard Corridor Visioning Project extends from Highway 99 to Tigard Public Library.
Today, the typical cross section found on Hall Boulevard along this extent includes two general traffic lanes with a center
turn lane. There are intermittent sidewalks and substandard (<6ft) striped grade-level bike lanes. The proposed vision for
a typical cross section along Hall Boulevard in the central segment is to maintain the two general traffic lanes with a center
turn lane where needed, and expand the total roadway footprint to 90ft wide to include consistent, grade separated
walking and biking facilities, pedestrian-scale lighting, and tree canopy.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS (39




CENTRAL SEGMENT (B)

%
4 s
14
‘/
15
Proposed
west side
shared-use

path extent

1,\/15]

City Hall

P

Fanno Creek
Trail —>»

Fanno Creek
House —»

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT

© 0000000000000 0000000000 0 00

Fanno Creek

Tigard
Library

<

PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

Commercial Street
Traffic Signal

RR Crossing
Bicycle-Pedestrian Railroad Crossing

Burnham Street
Right-of-Way Constraints

South of Burnham Street
Driveway access improvements

Central B Segment:
Commercial Street to Omara
Street*

Fanno Creek Bridge
Bridge replacement to
accommodate all modes

Omara Street

Enhanced crossing opportunity
with potential implementation of a
rectangular rapid flashing beacon
(RRFB).

*To see more details about these
recommendations, see the full
recommendations table at the
end of this chapter.




Commercial Street to Omara Street

The central segment of the Hall Boulevard
Corridor Visioning Project extends from
Highway 99 to Tigard Public Library. Today,
the typical cross section found on Hall
Boulevard along this extent includes two
general traffic lanes with a center turn
lane. There are intermittent sidewalks and
a substandard (<6ft) striped grade-level
bike lanes. The proposed vision for a
typical cross section along Hall Boulevard
in the central segment south of the future
Southwest MAX Light Rail Station is to
maintain the two general traffic lanes with
a center turn lane, and expand the total
roadway footprint to 90ft wide to include

a shared-use path on the west side,
pedestrian-scale lighting, and tree canopy.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS




— Fanno Creek

..................................

© 0060000000000 00000000000000000 0000

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

Wall Street
Enhanced Crossing Opportunity

Between Regina Ln and Fanno
Creek Drive

Enhanced crossing opportunity
with potential implementation of a
rectangular rapid flashing beacon
(RRFB).

McDonald Street

Protected Intersection, Traffic
Signal Improvements. Study
feasibility of roundabout.

South A Segment:
Omara St to Durham Road*

Greenswald Ln

Enhanced crossing opportunity
with potential implementation of a
rectangular rapid flashing beacon
(RRFB).

Bonita Road

Protected Intersection, Traffic
Signal Improvements. Study
feasibility of roundabout.

*To see more details about these
recommendations, see the full

recommendations table at the
end of this chapter.




eld e ceococcoceccscccccccccoccsococs oo South of Pinebrook Street
Right-of-Way Constraints

e e 0000000000000 000000000000 00 e Murdock Street
Enhanced crossing opportunity

EDETER

with potential implementation of a

JIONAGO

rectangular rapid flashing beacon
(RRFB).

© © 0606060006000 000600000000c 060000000 se SouthBSegment:
Omara Street to Durham
Road*

27 & R I I AN Sattler Street
Protected Intersection

R I I R I I I I S Ashford Street
Enhanced crossing opportunity
with potential implementation of a
rectangular rapid flashing beacon
(RRFB).

.................................. South of Ashford Street
Right-of-Way Constraints

D R R R N R B R A I I N N N A A X AVOI'I Street

Enhanced crossing opportunity
with potential implementation of a
rectangular rapid flashing beacon
(RRFB).

)

Cook SRR RERERERETRREY Durham Road

IasNOUAV
o
[o)]
=
=~
0w
o]
>
o
<3

School Protected Intersection

*To see more details about these
= vt recommendations, see the full
recommendations table at the

end of this chapter.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS




Omara Street to Durham Road

The south segment of the Hall Boulevard Corridor Visioning Project extends from Tigard Public Library to Durham Road.
Today, the typical cross section found on Hall Boulevard along this extent includes two general traffic lanes with a center
turn lane. There are intermittent sidewalks and substandard (<6ft) striped grade-level bike lanes. The proposed vision for a
typical cross section along Hall Boulevard in the south segment is to maintain the two general traffic lanes with a center turn
lane, and expand the total roadway footprint to 90ft wide to include consistent, grade separated walking and biking facilities,
pedestrian-scale lighting, and tree canopy.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS




Why Three Lanes? Wouldn’t More Lanes Be Better?

In each study segment, the proposed typical cross section for Hall Boulevard offers a three lane
cross section (two general traffic lanes and center turn lane). In our outreach, a handful of people
expressed concern that the City isn’t widening Hall Boulevard in anticipation of future growth.

Here’s why the concept plan calls for maintaining three lanes:

A THREE LANE STREET...

...Is consistent with the 2040 TSP which

plans for a future 3-lane section.

...easily accommodates up to between
20-22k Average Daily Traffic and Hall Blvd
carries between 13-17k Average Daily Traffic

today.

...is unlikely to worsen congestion.
Increasing the number of lanes in a roadway
induces demand, where travel times
temporarily decrease but then increase
again as more traffic routes onto the newly

built lanes.

...supports more multimodal infrastructure
which improves both the safety and

overall capacity of the roadway. Providing
sidewalks and bike lanes which have smaller
footprints but are more efficient at moving
people increases capacity without adding
travel lanes. As a gateway to downtown,
schools, parks, and the library, Hall
Boulevard should be designed for people in

addition to car throughput.
...Is less costly to build and maintain.

...makes accessing businesses along Hall
Boulevard by walking and rolling more

pleasant.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

...has fewer private property impacts.

...allows for pedestrian refuge islands

and shorter crossing distances. Crossing
a five-lane roadway introduces new
safety challenges, especially for people
with disabilities, children, and seniors.
Specifically, when people cross two or
more lanes of traffic, they are especially
vulnerable to vehicles in the innermost
lanes whose sightlines are blocked by the
vehicles stopped in the outermost lane.

This is known as the multiple threat issue.

..frees up more space in the public right-
of-way for higher quality walking and
biking facilities, as well as trees and storm

water infrastructure.

..isin line with the City’s stated priorities.
The City of Tigard is committed to
creating a well-connected, attractive, and
accessible pedestrian network. Its plans
and policies call for improved walkability,
safety, accessibility, carbon responsibility,
and multimodal transportation on its

streets.

45



Key Intersections

PROTECTED

INTERSECTION

llustration of a protected intersection design for Hall Boulevard/Locust Street.

Description Outcome

As the terminus for the Hall Boulevard corridor in Protected intersections create shorter, simpler
Tigard, Locust St serves as an important intersection crossings, more predictable movements, and

for local businesses as well as students accessing better visibility between people on bikes and
Metzger Elementary School. This intersection people driving. As a result, the intersection is more
is one of a handful of intersections along Hall comfortable and safer for people using the bikeway
Boulevard recommended to be reconstructed as a and the crosswalk.

protected intersection.

Left: Design guidance for
protected intersections.
Source: NACTO 2023

46 HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS




The Hunziker-Scoffins intersection is offset, creating mobility challenges for all modes.

Description

Today, the intersection of Scoffins Street and
Hunziker Street is offset, creating a complicated
intersection that is difficult to navigate for all modes.
Long crossing distances, substandard bike lanes,
and multiple traffic signals are a few of the reasons
why long-range plans call for this intersection to

be realigned (see Tigard’s TSP: Project ID S-25).
Additionally, intersection operations will need to be
improved if the Southwest Corridor light rail is built,
due to its proximity to the planned alignment.

This plan recommends rebuilding the intersection as
a protected intersection, or studying the possibility
for a roundabout.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS

Outcome

Realigning the intersection will offer the City an
opportunity to simplify and improve the intersection
for people walking, biking, driving, and taking the
bus. The realignment would also allow for a more
seamless transition for the Southwest Corridor light
rail line into downtown Tigard.




48

Recommendations Table

ID Location Category Recommendation

1 Locust St Protected Intersection Reconstruct intersection to protected intersection standards. Protected
intersections create shorter, simpler crossings, more predictable
movements, and better visibility between people on bikes and people

driving.
2 Oak St Enhanced Crossing Enhanced crossing opportunity. An enhanced crossing facility would use
Opportunity high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and appropriate signage.

Potential improvements could include leading pedestrian intervals, curb
extensions, advanced stop bars and/or additional lighting.

3 Spruce St Enhanced Crossing Enhanced crossing opportunity. An enhanced crossing facility would use
Opportunity high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and appropriate signage.
Potential improvements could include pedestrian refuge islands, leading
pedestrian intervals, curb extensions, advanced stop bars and/or additional
lighting. This recommendation aligns with an ODOT project: SW Hall
Boulevard Pedestrian Safety Improvements SW Hemlock Street and SW
Spruce Street!!

4 Steve St Enhanced crossing Enhanced crossing opportunity with potential implementation of a
opportunity rectangular rapid flashing beacon (RRFB). An enhanced crossing facility
with potential would use high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and advanced
implementation of warning signage.

a rectangular rapid
flashing beacon (RRFB).

5 Pfaffle St Traffic Signal A new traffic signal at Hall Boulevard and Pfaffle St has been funded. This
recommendation is to further enhance the pedestrian crossings, such as
high-visibility continental crosswalks on all three legs of the intersection,
leading pedestrian intervals, curb extensions, and additional lighting.
Funded in the FY23-24 budget. See 95054 Hall Boulevard Pfaffle St
New Traffic Signal. (Funding source: Transportation Development Tax,
Transportation SDC) page 204. See also: TSP Project S-22, page 90.

6 Route 78 Bus Stop  Right-of-Way This area is too narrow for the typical cross section to fit. Special design
North of Highway Constraints considerations will be needed to accommodate all modes until such time
99 that adjacent properties redevelop.

1 OR 141: SW Hall Boulevard Pedestrian Safety Improvements SW Hemlock Street and SW Spruce Street. More information
here: https://www.oregon.gov/odot/projects/pages/project-details.aspx?project=22647

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROV




ID Location Category Recommendation

7 Hwy 99 Protected Intersection Reconstruct intersection to protected intersection standards. Protected
intersections create shorter, simpler crossings, more predictable
movements, and better visibility between people on bikes and people
driving.

8 Hwy 99 Remove Slip Lane Signal timing improvements, improved crosswalks at the intersection of Hall
Boulevard and Highway 99. A complete removal is proposed for the right
turn slip lane on Highway 99 on the southwest corner of the intersection.
This would allow for safer pedestrian crossings to the south side of the
intersection and improve the access to downtown.

9 South of Highway  Access Management An access restriction and/or intersection reconfiguration is proposed at
99 this location to reduce conflicts for turning vehicles and improve traffic flow
on Hall Boulevard. This could include blocking vehicle access completely,
restricting vehicle turning movements to "right-in, right-out", or using
signage to partially restrict access to one direction.

10 Knoll Dr Enhanced crossing Enhanced crossing opportunity with potential implementation of a
opportunity rectangular rapid flashing beacon (RRFB). An enhanced crossing facility
with potential would use high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and advanced
implementation of warning signage.

a rectangular rapid
flashing beacon (RRFB).

M Knoll Dr Remove Northbound Removal of northbound right turn lane is proposed at the intersection of
Right Turn Lane Hall Boulevard and Knoll Dr to reduce conflicts and increase separation for
people walking and biking.

12 Scoffins St Traffic Signal Changes The intersection of Hall Boulevard and Hunziker Rd will be reconfigured
and Intersection to align with Scoffins St. These changes will require traffic signal
Realignment. changes. Consider a protected intersection design. See Tigard's 2040
Study feasibility of Transportation System Plan project S-25 on page 91. Additionally, study
roundabout. the potential for implementing a roundabout at this location during the

engineering and design phase.

13 Commercial St Enhanced Crossing Enhanced crossing opportunity. An enhanced crossing facility would use
Opportunity high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and appropriate signage.
Potential improvements could include pedestrian refuge islands, leading
pedestrian intervals, curb extensions, advanced stop bars and/or additional
lighting.

14 Commercial St Traffic Signal New traffic signal at Hall Boulevard and Commercial St. Include high-
visibility continental crosswalks on all three legs of the intersection.

15 RR Crossing Bicycle-Pedestrian Construct a pedestrian and bicycle rail road crossing perpendicular to the
Railroad Crossing railway.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS




ID Location Category Recommendation

16 Burnham St Right-of-Way This recommendation is to further enhance the pedestrian crossings, by
Constraints including high-visibility continental crosswalks on all three legs of the
intersection, leading pedestrian intervals, curb extensions, and additional
lighting.
17 South of Burnham  Access Management An access restriction and/or intersection reconfiguration for is proposed at
St this location to reduce conflicts for turning vehicles and improve traffic flow

on Hall Boulevard. This could include blocking vehicle access completely,
restricting vehicle turning movements to "right-in, right-out", or using
signage to partially restrict access to one direction.

18a  Fanno Creek Trail Enhanced Crossing This plan recommends installing a Pedestrian Hybrid Signal for the Fanno
Crossing Opportunity Creek Trail crossing just north of the bridge. See TSP Project IDs: S-18,
S-19, AT-15.
18b  Fanno Creek Bridge replacement Reconstruct Fanno Creek Bridge to the typical cross section identified in
Bridge to accommodate all this plan. RTP ID: 12003. See TSP Project IDs: S-18, S-19, AT-15.
modes
19 Omara St Enhanced crossing Enhanced crossing opportunity with potential implementation of a
opportunity rectangular rapid flashing beacon (RRFB). An enhanced crossing facility
with potential would use high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and advanced
implementation of warning signage.

a rectangular rapid
flashing beacon (RRFB).

20  Wall st Enhanced Crossing Enhanced crossing opportunity. An enhanced crossing facility would use
Opportunity high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and appropriate signage.
Potential improvements could include pedestrian refuge islands, leading
pedestrian intervals, curb extensions, advanced stop bars and/or additional

lighting.
21 Between Regina Enhanced crossing Enhanced crossing opportunity with potential implementation of a
Ln and Fanno opportunity rectangular rapid flashing beacon (RRFB). An enhanced crossing facility
Creek Dr with potential would use high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and advanced
implementation of warning signage.
a rectangular rapid
flashing beacon (RRFB).
22 McDonald St Protected Intersection, Reconstruct intersection to protected intersection standards. Protected
Traffic Signal intersections create shorter, simpler crossings, more predictable
Improvements. movements, and better visibility between people on bikes and people
Study feasibility of driving. Include traffic signal timing improvements to improve traffic flow on
roundabout. Hall Boulevard between McDonald St and Bonita Rd. Study feasibility of
roundabout during engineering and design phase. See TSP Projects IDs
S-19, S-20.

50 HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROV




ID

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

Location Category

Greenswald Ln Enhanced crossing
opportunity
with potential
implementation of
a rectangular rapid

flashing beacon (RRFB).

Bonita Rd Protected Intersection,
Traffic Signal
Improvements.
Study feasibility of
roundabout.

South of Pinebrook Right-of-Way
St Constraints

Murdock St Enhanced crossing
opportunity
with potential
implementation of
a rectangular rapid

Recommendation

Enhanced crossing opportunity with potential implementation of a
rectangular rapid flashing beacon (RRFB). An enhanced crossing facility
would use high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and advanced
warning signage. Include an access restriction and/or intersection
reconfiguration for is proposed at Greensward Ln to reduce conflicts for
turning vehicles and improve traffic flow on Hall Boulevard. This could
include blocking vehicle access completely, restricting vehicle turning
movements to "right-in, right-out", or using signage to partially restrict
access to one direction.

Reconstruct intersection to protected intersection standards. Protected
intersections create shorter, simpler crossings, more predictable
movements, and better visibility between people on bikes and people
driving. Include traffic signal timing improvements to improve traffic flow on
Hall Boulevard between McDonald St and Bonita Rd.

This area is too narrow for the typical cross section to fit. Special design
considerations will be needed to accommodate all modes.

Enhanced crossing opportunity with potential implementation of a
rectangular rapid flashing beacon (RRFB). An enhanced crossing facility
would use high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and advanced
warning signage.

flashing beacon (RRFB).

Sattler St Protected Intersection

Ashford St Enhanced crossing
opportunity
with potential
implementation of
a rectangular rapid

Reconstruct intersection to protected intersection standards. Protected
intersections create shorter, simpler crossings, more predictable
movements, and better visibility between people on bikes and people
driving.

Enhanced crossing opportunity with potential implementation of a
rectangular rapid flashing beacon (RRFB). An enhanced crossing facility
would use high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and advanced
warning signage.

flashing beacon (RRFB).

South of Ashford Right-of-Way
St Constraints

Avon St Enhanced crossing
opportunity
with potvential
implementation of
a rectangular rapid

This area is too narrow for the typical cross section to fit. Special design
considerations will be needed to accommodate all modes.

Enhanced crossing opportunity with potential implementation of a
rectangular rapid flashing beacon (RRFB). An enhanced crossing facility
would use high-visibility continental crosswalk markings and advanced
warning signage.

flashing beacon (RRFB).

Durham Rd Protected Intersection

Reconstruct intersection to protected intersection standards. Protected
intersections create shorter, simpler crossings, more predictable
movements, and better visibility between people on bikes and people
driving. Include traffic signal timing improvements to improve traffic flow on
Hall Boulevard between McDonald St and Bonita Rd.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS




b.
CONSIDERATIONS FOR

IMPLEMENTATION



DISCUSSION

Undertaking a project of this magnitude and
complexity presents many challenges and
uncertainties, especially given the numerous potential
funding scenarios and evolving circumstances. In

this section, we discuss the various segments of the
Hall Boulevard project in greater detail to help the
City make informed decisions as funding sources
materialize and opportunities emerge.

North Segment (Locust Street to
Highway 99)

There are several key implementation notes to
consider during future phases of work in the North
segment. First, while each of the intersections along
Hall Boulevard should feature safe bicycle and
pedestrian crossings, the design of the protected
Locust Street intersection will be especially critical
due to the number of school trips it facilitates (or
could facilitate) between Metzger Elementary

and neighborhoods to the north and east of the
intersection.

Additionally, the City was awarded $1M in ODOT Safe
Routes to School (SRTS) funding to add a sidewalk
on the north side of Locust St between Hall Blvd and
92nd Ave. This project should be completed with an
understanding that this sidewalk will connect to a
future protected intersection at Hall. Similarly, ODOT
was awarded a federal earmark of $4M for improved
pedestrian crossings and sidewalk infill on Spruce
Street. This work should be coordinated to fulfill the
future vision of Hall Boulevard along this segment.
Lastly, ODOT will be rebuilding the Highway 217
Bridge. The future bridge will include sidewalks and
bike lanes on both sides. The design of the North
segment should account for this and attempt to add
separation between the bike lane and the travel lane
to the extent possible, either as a painted buffer or
using flexible delineators.

There are two mid-block crossings proposed for the

North segment. The first is at Steve St, which doesn’t
connect to Hall Boulevard. A new park is planned in a
parcel adjacent to Steve St, but the plans don’t include
a connection to Hall Boulevard. The project team still
recommends a mid-block crossing at this location
despite this fact, because the next available crossings
are either Spruce Street or Pfaffle Street, nearly a
quarter mile apart. The second mid-block crossing

is proposed at the first bus stop north of Highway

99. This crossing is already marked, has signage,

and employs a pedestrian refuge island. However, it
currently does not offer facilities for people biking that
would be considered sufficient for riders of all ages
and abilities. Special design considerations will need
to be taken at this location to accommodate all modes.

In terms of existing right-of-way, the North segment
is the most constrained. The proposed cross section
design is narrower than the other segments but will
still likely deviate from the typical cross section in
certain areas. The difference between the proposed
vision for the North segment and the available right-
of-way is especially pronounced between Oak Street
and Spruce Street. Future phases of work should
study the option for no center left turn lane at Spruce
Street as a way to save space.

In terms of prioritizing implementation, the North
segment is adjacent to residential areas with the
greatest transportation equity needs along the
corridor. The segment also has the most substandard
infrastructure and therefore has the greatest potential
to leverage State of Good repair funding toward
achieving the Hall Boulevard vision. Additionally, the
North segment has other incoming projects, such as
sidewalks on Locust St. Prioritizing the Hall Boulevard
improvements between Spruce and Locust would help
to complement these projects and together would
have a greater impact on the quality of the bicycle and
pedestrian network than if say, the section between
Pfaffle St and Hwy 99 were prioritized, because the
three projects would not connect.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | CONSIDERATIONS FOR IMPLEMENTATION




Central Segment (A) (Highway 99 to
Commercial Street)

At the start of the project, the Central segment was
considered one segment due to the difference in
land uses from the northern and southern extents

of the corridor. However, during the alternatives
development phase, it became clear that the Central
segment should be divided into two subsegments
to include the unique design found within Central
segment (B).

The most critical intersection of the segment is

at Highway 99. The project team recommends a
protected intersection design and removal of the
eastbound to southbound slip lane among other
improvements. The scale of the work needed to make
the intersection of Hall Boulevard and Highway 99 is
large and would require significant coordination with
ODOT even after the jurisdictional transfer, and would
likely be completed as a standalone effort separate
from the implementation of the Hall Boulevard corridor
work. Still, this is the most important intersection in
the City of Tigard from a safety perspective, so any
changes to the intersection that could be completed
with funding for this project should be attempted.

Between Highway 99 and Hunziker Street, there

are no marked crossings, which prompted the
recommendation for a crossing at Garden Place. After
gathering public input however, this recommendation
was moved to Knoll Street. The distance between
Highway 99 and Scoffins Street is roughly 1,500 feet,
enough distance that another marked crossing could
be considered.

The proposed cross section for Central segment (A)

is similar to that of the North segment, but calls for a
wider footprint. This wider footprint manifests in larger
sidewalks (10’ instead of 8’) to accommodate the
increased pedestrian traffic in and around downtown
Tigard. While it has more right-of-way than the north
segment, Central segment (A) has less than Central

B and the South segments, and would face greater

challenges in acquiring more due to the position of
existing buildings relative to the property lines.

Finally, this segment of Hall Boulevard is adjacent
to some of its highest equity need areas, and so
additional attention to the transportation needs and
impacts of the work on the surrounding community
should be factored into the implementation of the
proposed improvements in this area.

Central Segment (B) (Commercial Street
to Omara Street)

The Central segment (B) has the most unique
proposed cross section among the four segments.
This segment accounts for the future Southwest
Corridor light rail station and has the highest
concentration of destinations along the corridor:
downtown, the Fanno Creek Trail, and the Tigard
Library. These are the factors that prompted the
inclusion of the west side shared-use path.

The implementation of this segment will impact the use
of these facilities. The northern terminus at Commercial
Street is intended to be a gateway into downtown

as well as facilitate people traveling between transit
stations, and so its design should incorporate
wayfinding signage and seating. The crossing on

the north leg should be enhanced to facilitate travel
between downtown, the light rail, and north bound
cyclists looking to transition back to the east side.

Another key implementation consideration is the
railroad crossing. The crossing should include
pedestrian and bicycle signals and/or gate treatments.
These elements should be emphasized on the west
side with the shared-use path. The design of the west
side pedestrian and bicycle facilities will need to bend
away from Hall Boulevard and intersect the railroad
perpendicularly. This will require additional right-of-
way from the railroad authority. The east side however,
won’t require as intensive of a treatment as it will

only have an on-street northbound bike lane and 6’
sidewalk.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | CONSIDERATIONS FOR IMPLEMENTATION




Next, the Fanno Creek Bridge will need to be
completely replaced to accommodate the proposed
cross section for Central segment (A). Within the
segment, the available right-of-way is least flexible
between the Fanno Creek Bridge and Omara Street.
However, a southbound center left turn lane won'’t
be necessary at Omara Street, so a two-lane cross
section could be implemented to save space.

Recently, ODOT submitted a federal earmark ($4M)
for a pedestrian crossing at Omara Street. If granted,
the timing of this work should be coordinated with the
rebuilding of the roadway at this location, because this
crossing will function as the southern terminus of the
shared-use path. At this end, the path should function
as a gateway to the library and help facilitate travel to
and from the Fanno Creek Trail, so wayfinding signage
and seating in this area may be especially important.
Additionally, this crossing would be where people
biking northbound would have the option to either
continue northbound on and on-street bike lane or
transition to the shared-use path, so an RRFB or other
user-activated crossing is recommended. Both the
Commercial Street and Omara Street crossings should
include bike crossing markings.

Improvements in Central B will be easier than those in
Central A to complete in the near term because of the
uncertainty around the Southwest Corridor light rail
and the subsequent realignment of Hunziker St and
Scoffins St. Additionally, coordinating the proposed
protected intersection at Hall Boulevard and Hwy 99
with ODOT itself would likely be a larger task than
implementing the whole vision for segment Central B.

South Segment (Omara Street to
Durham Road)

Hall Boulevard’s most heavily traveled section is
between Bonita Road and McDonald Street. Given
that Hall Boulevard, a north-south roadway, facilitates
so much east-west travel, the project team proposes
studying the potential for roundabouts during the
design phase at these two locations. A preliminary

assessment of these two locations suggested that
roundabouts would be difficult to implement without
significant right-of-way acquisition and earthwork.
However, additional study would help the City
understand if the extra effort could significantly
improve traffic flow. The City will need to acquire right-
of-way immediately south of Bonita Road, or else it will
be forced to implement a design that deviates
significantly from the proposed cross section.

ODOT included Ashford Street in the same federal
earmark as Omara Street. Should this funding become
available, the Ashford Street crossing should be
implemented in a way that fulfills the vision for the
South segment. At this location there is also a right-of-
way pinchpoint just south of Ashford Street.

Durham Road, like Locust Street, is one of the most
important intersections along the whole corridor for
students, given its proximity to Tigard High School.
Given the way the school is oriented relative to the
rest of the network, Hall Boulevard would be the most
direct north-south connection for students walking
and biking to school.

Finally, the City should consider implementing

traffic calming infrastructure along SW 85th Ave to
facilitate the connection between Hall Boulevard and
Cook Park.

In terms of prioritizing implementation, the south
segment’s largest challenge will be the section
between Bonita Rd and McDonald St. The section
between Bonita Rd and Durham could be a good
candidate for interim bike infrastructure like separated
bike lanes with delineators, and would enhance the
connection between bike facilities on Durham Rd and
Sattler St. There are also multiple locations in which
crossing improvements would support transit stops
and connections to neighborhood paths. Focusing on
improvements in this section first would have the
benefits of connecting more residential areas directly
to Tigard High School and Cook Park.

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | CONSIDERATIONS FOR IMPLEMENTATION




IMPLEMENTATION

Cost Estimate

After the second round of public engagement, in
which community members were asked to provide
feedback on the proposed concepts, the project
team began estimating the costs of the final
recommendations in each segment. These estimates
are considered “planning level” and are the project
team’s current estimate for the price tag associated
with implementing the vision using current material
and construction costs.

The construction cost to rebuild Hall Boulevard

as proposed in this plan is estimated to be
approximately $61.1M, or roughly double that of
the cost to bring the roadway up to a State of
Good Repair. This does not include the soft costs
of engineering or design work, nor does it include
the costs of moving utilities and acquiring right-
of-way. These additional costs can vary but our
initial estimates place the total cost including these
expenses at over $100M.

It is worth noting that these improvements are
investments with the potential for long-term cost
benefits, not only in terms of safety but also in
attracting private sector development. Metro’s
report on active transportation return on investment
quantifies some of these economic advantages,
emphasizing the opportunity costs of delaying these
crucial enhancements

Prioritization

Given the scale and complexity of the proposed
improvements, it is likely the project will be funded

1 Active Transportation Return on Investment Study
Metro (2022). https://www.oregonmetro.gov/active-
transportation-return-investment-study

by multiple sources and over varying timeframes.
Prioritization of the improvements will be necessary if
the funding and timing realities force the vision to be
implemented incrementally. Prioritization should be
based on a number of factors, including geography,
need, timing, phasing, benefits and cost.

Need: Projects could be prioritized by
infrastructure needs and equity considerations
of an area relative to the rest of the corridor.
The greatest difference between State of Good
Repair costs and the costs associated with

the Hall Boulevard vision exists in the North
segment. The highest scoring equity areas

are in the North Segment and the Central A

segment.

Timing/proximity: Some improvements may
be more suitable than others to combine

or coincide with other capital improvement
projects, land development, or funding
opportunities that make their implementation
easier and enhance the overall effect. This
will be necessary in comparing city-identified
Betterments vs. State of Good Repair

improvements.

Geography: this document outlines 4 key study
areas which could serve as logical groupings
for a larger improvement project, even if other
parts of the corridor can’t be implemented until

later.

Benefits: Some improvement projects
represent “low-hanging fruit” in that the cost to
implement them is small relative to the benefits
that they provide. Examples of these could be

enhanced crossings near key destinations like

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | CONSIDERATIONS FOR IMPLEMENTATION




schools and parks.

Cost: On a per mile basis, the Central segment
(B) would cost the most to implement given the
complexity of the cross section and the scale
of constraints faced in that segment; however,
at just over $6M, it would be less expensive

to construct than the South segment, which
would cost over twice as much. The South
segment is the next most expensive segment
on a per mile basis due to its wider footprint.
The segment of greatest overlap between
State of Good Repair costs and the costs
associated with the Hall Boulevard vision

(in other words, the segment with the most
opportunity to align State of Good Repair
funding with the vision) exists in the North
segment, where the existing infrastructure is

least sufficient.

Phasing: some improvements are more suitable
than others to be phased in over time, starting
with semi-permanent infrastructure. For
example, rather than a raised curb protected
bike lane, the City could consider buffer

striping and delineators in strategic locations.

Project Prioritization by Segment:

Prioritizing the implementation of Hall
Boulevard improvements in the North segment
between Spruce St and Locust St may be
beneficial. Prioritizing this section would
complement incoming projects such as the
sidewalks on Locust St and Spruce St, which
would enhance the bicycle and pedestrian

network’s overall quality more effectively than

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | CONSIDERATIONS FOR IMPLEMENTATION

starting with another non-connecting section
like Pfaffle St to Hwy 99.

Prioritizing improvements in Central B may

be more feasible in the near term due to the
uncertainties surrounding the Southwest
Corridor light rail and the subsequent
realignment of Hunziker St and Scoffins

St. Coordinating the proposed protected
intersection at Hall Boulevard and Hwy 99 with
ODOT will likely be a larger task, making the
completion of Central A improvements more
challenging than those in Central B, despite

Central B having a slightly higher cost per mile.

The main implementation challenge for the
South segment lies in the stretch between
Bonita Rd and McDonald St. Focusing efforts
on the segment from Bonita Rd to Durham Rd
with interim bike infrastructure and crossing
improvements would better connect existing
bike facilities and support transit stops,
benefiting residential areas and enhancing

access to Tigard High School and Cook Park.

57




1
APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

alta

To: Dave Roth, Joe Wisniewski P.E., City of Tigard

From: Derek Abe, Phil Longenecker Alta Planning + Design

Date: 8/01/2022

Re: Hall Boulevard Corridor Visioning Project Task 2.2 — Existing Conditions Memo

Existing Conditions Memorandum

This memo addresses the existing conditions, opportunities, and constraints to multimodal connections near
and along Hall Boulevard. This memo will summarize City policies, consider current and future access along the
corridor, and review similar assessments conducted for Hall Boulevard. Lastly, this memo will highlight key
features of the corridor, summarize the transportation context of the area and provide a foundation for the
visioning project. The various sections in this memo are listed below:

1. Plan Review
2. Introduction to Project Area
a. Project Extent
b. Equity and Demographics
c. Existing and Planned Pedestrian and Bicycle Networks
d. Transit Context
e. Vehicular and Truck Traffic

3. Collisions and Safety

4. Key Development Areas

5. Right of Way

6. Project Opportunities and Constraints
Plan Review

City of Tigard Transportation System Plan (2022)

The 2040 Transportation System Plan (TSP) was initiated in 2020 and responds to a new strategic vision for
Tigard’s future, which emphasizes developing a multi-modal transportation system that is walkable, healthy,
sustainable, and accessible for everyone. This TSP serves as an important long-range planning tool for Tigard to
ensure its transportation system can meet community needs, realize the City’s strategic vision, and conform to
state and regional policies.

The TSP discusses Hall Boulevard in the following ways:

e Hall Boulevard will be a key north-south route between neighborhoods within Tigard, providing a critical
function for accessing Downtown, the Tigard Transit Center, the Tigard Triangle, numerous civic uses,

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

alta

including the library. With a potential for jurisdictional transfer of this road, the city has an interest in
enhancing this corridor with improved sidewalks and bikeways between SW Omara Street and
Pacific Highway.

e The need to update the characterization of Hall Boulevard to reflect the jurisdictional transfer from
ODOT to the City of Tigard.

e Pacific Highway and Hall Boulevard are the primary access routes to the downtown area.

e The need to reexamine the alignment of Scoffins St/Hunziker St at Hall Boulevard.

o The percentage of youth under age 18 is fairly evenly distributed across the City, but the senior
population is heavily concentrated in the southeast neighborhoods between Pacific Highway and Hall
Boulevard.

e Improving pedestrian and bicycle crossing opportunities at the intersection of Commercial Street and
Hall Boulevard.

City of Tigard Strategic Plan 2020 — 2025

In 2019, the City embarked on a journey to refresh Tigard’s Strategic Plan, last updated in 2015. The purpose of
the strategic plan is to set a focus for how the city’s vision and direction will be achieved. The strategic plan
helps an organization allocate resources, set priorities, and states what it will say yes to. The plan outlines a
vision, which intends to highlight where we want to go as a city and what we want to be. The new vision
emphasizes equity, walkability, health, and accessibility.

The second strategic priority is to create a well-connected, attractive, and accessible pedestrian network. The
objectives and actions relating to this priority that are relevant to the Hall Boulevard project are listed below:

e Create a well-connected pedestrian network that links all Tigard residents and businesses.

e Bring parks and trailheads within a 10-minute walk of every Tigard resident.

o Design the trail system to serve both recreational and active transportation purposes.

e Invest in infrastructure that increases public safety such as trail lighting.

e Ensure inclusive and accessible design is included in the design guidelines and implemented through the
ADA Transition Plan, Parks Master Plan, and Pedestrian Network Plan.

Tigard Complete Streets Policy Implementation Plan (2019)

At its heart, the Strategic Plan sets forth a vision for Tigard to build its unique identity as the most walkable
community in the Pacific Northwest. Achieving this outcome requires a practical, policy-driven “Complete
Streets” approach that reconsiders how Tigard plans and invests in its transportation system. The Complete
Streets policy is therefore critical to the visioning of Hall Boulevard.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

Below are the guiding principles of the Complete Streets policy:

2.1 Serve All Users

2.2 Provide Interconnected Networks

2.3 Use Best Practices and Innovative, Context-Sensitive Design
2.4 Support Land Use Planning Goals

2.5 Internal and Jurisdictional Coordination

2.6 Measure Performance

City of Tigard Transportation Safety Action Plan (2019)

The City of Tigard Transportation Safety Action Plan (TSAP) documents the findings from a citywide
transportation safety analysis that examined crashes involving pedestrians, bicyclists, and drivers. The TSAP
describes crash trends and patterns, prioritizes locations for safety improvements, and presents potential safety
treatments for locations with the most potential to reduce fatal and severe injury crashes in the City, some of
which involve Hall Boulevard. The TSAP identifies potential safety improvements and creates an avenue for the
city to pursue ODOT All Roads Transportation Safety (ARTS) and other grant funding to enhance transportation
safety.

The following intersections were ranked as some of the highest priority intersections in Tigard given their history
of crashes and severity:

e Highway 99 and Hall Boulevard (Ranked #1)
e Hall Boulevard and Durham Rd (Ranked #14)

Murraysmith Hall Boulevard Condition Assessment (2020)

The purpose of the Murraysmith report was to provide an assessment of the existing condition of assets within
the public right-of-way along SW Hall Boulevard, from SW Durham Road to the City of Tigard (City) limits just
north of SW Locust Street. This condition assessment addresses the immediate needs and costs to bring SW Hall
Boulevard to a “State of Good Repair”, with the understanding that the Oregon Department of Transportation
(ODOT) and the City will work towards reaching a jurisdictional transfer of SW Hall Boulevard within the City
limits.

The report states that deferred maintenance and rapidly evolving construction standards have left much of the
corridor needing significant work to bring SW Hall Boulevard to a State of Good Repair. The percentage of assets
that need to be brought to a State of Good Repair, that can be quantified, are as follows: 81 percent roadway
pavement, 98 percent curb ramps, 65 percent storm drainage facilities, and the Ash Creek Bridge. To address
corridor wide deficiencies and bring Hall Boulevard to a State of Good Repair, it will cost approximately $28.4
million if constructed in 2020.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

The assessment contains detailed information for Hall Boulevard on the following, all of which serve as an
important foundation for the Hall Boulevard visioning project:

e Functional Classification and Traffic Volume

e Cross Sectional Elements

e Future Projects

e Pavement Condition

e Curb and Sidewalk

e Curb Ramps

e Stormwater Facilities

e Traffic Signals and Flashing Beacons

o [llumination

e Permanent Signage

e Bridges

e Right-of-Way

e Railroad Crossing

Washington Square Regional Center Redevelopment Plan (2021)

The Washington Square Regional Center (WSRC) is located at the northern edge of Tigard, the southeastern
edge of Beaverton, and the eastern edge of unincorporated Washington County. Recognizing the WSRC'’s
potential for transformative, equitable, and sustainable growth, the City of Tigard led a 2020-2021 project to
update existing policies and the original land use and transportation vision. Some recommendations that
resulted from this effort relate directly to Hall Boulevard. This project sought to better align future WSRC
development with current community needs and aspirations, emerging market trends, and Tigard’s goal to be a
walkable, healthy, and inclusive community.

Key recommendations from the Washington Square Regional Center Redevelopment Plan include:
e Explore interest in Oregon “Main Street” designation for Hall Boulevard between Oak and Locust.
e Enhance pedestrian and bicycle safety and access along Hall Boulevard, through measures such as
enhanced mid-block crossings at key locations.
e Study the feasibility of a pedestrian and bicycle connection between Hall Boulevard and the future
Metzger/Ash Creek park.

Fehr & Peers Mobility Solutions Analysis Methodology (Southwest Corridor) (2020)

As part of the Southwest Corridor Light Rail Project, significant planning and analysis were conducted on behalf
of TriMet and Metro. The Fehr & Peers Mobility Solutions Analysis and Methodology report outlines their
demographic and psychographic analyses on accessing proposed light rail stations, one of which was located on
Hall Boulevard. Each proposed transit station along the SWC had a different combination of mobility elements

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

that suit the unique geographic, land use, and demographic characteristics around the station. The authors then
made recommendations on what new mobility elements will best suit each station based on their findings.

The report found that among households within 1 mile of the proposed Hall Boulevard Station (which would be
located on Hall Boulevard between Scoffins St and Burnham St) there exists a larger population of low-income

families and low-income seniors.

City of Tigard Comprehensive Plan (2007)

The City of Tigard Comprehensive Plan acts as the City’s “land use constitution.” It is the document that provides
the broad policy basis for Tigard’s land use planning program and ultimately guides all actions relating to the use
of land in the City. The Plan also signals that the City’s land use planning efforts will implement state and
regional requirements, including Oregon’s land use planning goals and related laws, state administrative rules,
and applicable Metro plans and requirements.

Key findings of the comprehensive plan relating to the transportation system are listed below:
e Improving connectivity will maximize the investment in the existing transportation system.
e Land use patterns that shorten home-to-work trips, support transit, and make walk/bike trips more
viable can help reduce congestion.
e High comfort and low stress bicycle and pedestrian facilities are vital to developing at fully functioning
network that accommodates people of all ages and abilities plans and requirements.

Introduction to the Hall Boulevard Visioning Project Area

The Hall Boulevard corridor is an important multimodal north-south route in the city that will play a critical role
in connecting downtown with residential neighborhoods and future developments in the Tigard Triangle. The
roadway is classified as an arterial street in the City’s TSP. The roadway also intersects with key pieces of Tigard’s
multiuse path and trail network, such as the Fanno Creek Trail and Cook Park. In addition to serving many
walking and biking trips, Hall Boulevard is an important transit corridor and freight corridor. Multiple schools are
in close proximity to the roadway, such as Tigard High School and Twality Middle School, which makes Hall
Boulevard important in serving school-related trips.

The visioning project extent, which extends from Locust St to Durham Rd, contains multiple intersections that
play a prominent role in the transportation system, including Locust St, Hwy 99, Hunziker Rd/Scoffins St,
McDonald St, Bonita Rd, and Durham Rd (Map 1). While each segment of Hall Boulevard has its own
opportunities and constraints, the overall roadway can be conceptualized into three segments with somewhat
similar land use and transportation contexts: North (Locust St to Hwy 99), Central (c, and South (Fanno Creek
Trail to Durham Road).

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




Map 1

MEMORANDUM

alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 6 City of Tigard

64 HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

Equity and Demographic Analysis

One factor that makes Hall Boulevard a significant corridor in the City of Tigard is that it connects a diverse range
of people. In the census tracts that comprise the Central section of Hall Boulevard near downtown and the
Tigard Triangle, there are higher populations of lower income households relative to the surrounding
neighborhoods (Map 2). These neighborhoods are also where there are higher numbers of households who lack
access to a motor vehicle, and therefore may be dependent on other modes of transportation (Map 3). The
Transportation System Plan calls attention to this geography as well, noting that while “the percentage of youth
under age 18 is fairly evenly distributed across the City, the senior population is heavily concentrated in the
southeast neighborhoods between Pacific Highway and Hall Boulevard.” Alta’s in-house equity analysis tool,
which combines a range of indicators from demographic data to tree canopy coverage to economic mobility,
returns a result that is spatially consistent with these findings (Map 4). Incorporating equity within the Hall
Boulevard visioning project will likely mean specific and intentional outreach to these Equity Priority
communities, providing a range of transportation options, and investing in infrastructure that is accessible for
people of all ages and abilities.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX (65




Map 2

MEMORANDUM

alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 8 City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.

Map 3

MEMORANDUM

City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX

67




Map 4

MEMORANDUM

alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 10 City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

Existing and Planned Pedestrian and Bicycle Networks

Hall Boulevard is a major link in both the planned pedestrian and bicycle networks for the city (Maps 5, 6). The
roadway is designated a “pedestrian corridor” and a “major city bikeway” which emphasize the fact that Hall
Boulevard currently does, and will continue to, serve a high number of walking and biking trips in the city in
addition to connecting residential, recreational, and commercial areas (Maps 5, 7).

Hall Boulevard provides a direct route for people walking to and from residential areas to the downtown core or
the Fanno Creek Trail system. Currently, Hall Boulevard has inconsistent sidewalk coverage along its extent.
Sidewalk quality varies as well, and the inclusion of ADA accessible curbs and ramps is incomplete. The
Murraysmith report notes that 98% of the curb ramps along the corridor will need to be updated to bring Hall
Boulevard into a state of good repair. The report also found that of the existing sidewalk infrastructure, only 4%
is damaged or inadequate. There are multiple trail and multi-use paths that connect to Hall Boulevard but
marked crossings are largely limited to signalized intersections. People walking along Hall Boulevard will need to
safely cross to other pedestrian corridors identified in the TSP: Locust St, Oak St, Hwy 99, Hunziker Rd,
Commercial St, McDonald St, Bonita Rd, Sattler St, and Durham Rd.

Hall Boulevard currently has bike lanes along the project extent. These bike lanes vary in width and level of
separation, particularly in places where Hall Boulevard curves and where there are dedicated right turn lanes for
motor vehicles. The corridor currently lacks other supporting infrastructure such as bike specific signals, turn
boxes, and any physical separators such as curbs and bollards. Future bikeway designs for the roadway will need
to support bicycle turning movements to and from other major city bikeways, such as Locust St, Oak St, Hwy 99,
Hunziker Rd, Commercial St, McDonald St, Bonita Rd, Sattler St and Durham Rd.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX (&9




Map 5

MEMORANDUM

alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 12 City of Tigard

70 HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc.

Map 6

13

MEMORANDUM

City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX

71




Map 7

MEMORANDUM

alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 14 City of Tigard

72 HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

Transit Context

Hall Boulevard serves two transit lines, Route 78 north of Hwy 99 and Route 76 between downtown Tigard and
Durham Rd (Map 8). Route 76 is a frequent route that intersects another frequent route, Route 12, as well as
the WES commuter rail station in downtown. Hall Boulevard would intersect with the proposed Southwest
Corridor light rail line, which has a planned station between Commercial St and Hunziker Rd. There are 23 bus
stops along Hall Boulevard, but many lack ADA-compliant sidewalk and curb ramp access.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 15 City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX (73




Map 8

MEMORANDUM

alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 16 City of Tigard

74 HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

Vehicular and Truck Traffic

As noted previously, Hall Boulevard is designated as an Arterial in the City’s TSP. Arterials are designed for higher
volumes but tend not to be major regional travel ways. Minor arterial streets provide inter-neighborhood
connections. According to the TSP, there are two Hall Boulevard intersections that are consistently delayed due
to traffic: Hall Boulevard & McDonald St, and Hall Boulevard & Durham Rd.

Although the corridor is needed for freight traffic, Murray Smith reports that truck traffic accounts for 2.9% of
the annual average daily traffic (AADT). The maximum annual average daily traffic (AADT) reported by ODOT for
SW Hall Boulevard is 17,000, with truck traffic accounting for 2.9 percent of the AADT. According to City traffic
count data, the highest traveled segment is between McDonald St and Bonita Rd, due to east-west travel along
McDonald St and Bonita Rd (Map 9).

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX (75




Map 9

MEMORANDUM

alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 18 City of Tigard

76 HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

alta

Collisions and Safety

While the highest levels of
vehicular traffic on Hall Boulevard
exists between McDonald St and
Bonita Rd, three different areas
stand out when it comes to bicycle
and pedestrian traffic: Downtown,
the Fanno Creek Trail, and Durham
Rd (Map 10). The Transportation
Safety Action Plan (TSAP) found
that these areas also showed some
of the highest crash rates in the
city (see figure to the right).

The TSAP found that in Tigard,
pedestrian and bicyclist crashes
constitute an outsize share of
fatal/Injury A crashes relative to
their overall share of crashes:
Among the 61 reported pedestrian crashes (throughout the city 2013 - 2017), the following patterns were
identified:
e 46 pedestrian crashes (85 percent) occurred at arterial intersections.
e 30 pedestrian crashes (49 percent) occurred in dark, dawn, or dusk conditions (19 in dark conditions
with street lights, six in dark conditions without street lights, and five under dusk/dawn conditions).
e 36 pedestrian crashes (59 percent) were coded to indicate as a motorist’s failure to yield right-of-way.
Of those, 18 crashes (50 percent) were right-turning crashes.
Among the 65 reported bicycle crashes (throughout the city 2013 - 2017), the following patterns were identified:
e 53 crashes were turning movement crashes.
e The most frequent crash types were right-hooks at both signalized and unsignalized intersections.
e Right hooks have occurred on Hall Boulevard at the intersection of Hwy 99.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

According to the most recent crash data from ODOT, there have been 8 vehicles that have crashed into
pedestrians and bicyclists on Hall Boulevard between 2016-2020 (Map 11). These are only reported incidents,
however. Contemporary research estimates that about half of bicycle and pedestrian involved crashes are
actually reported.! Additionally, low bicycle and pedestrian crash rates do not necessarily indicate safer
roadways; in some cases, unsafe roadways have low crash rates because people are discouraged from walking
and biking along them.

One of the biggest factors in crash severity is speed. The Washington Square Regional Center plan calls for a
speed reduction on Hall Boulevard from 40 to 35 between Pfaffle St and Locust St.

1 A study of bicycle and pedestrian crashes in New York, California, and North Carolina found that only 43% to 67% of
bicycle-motor vehicle crashes identified in hospital emergency data were identified in state crash data, while 45% to 68% of
pedestrian-motor vehicle crashes were identified (Stutts & Hunter, 1999). A more recent study examining hospital records
of traffic crash victims in New York City found similar results: only 50% of pedestrians and 45% of cyclist crash victims could
be linked to police crash records, compared to 63% of drivers (Conderino et al., 2017). A study of bicycle-related injuries at
San Francisco General Hospital found that, from 2000 to 2009, of 2,504 patients treated for bicycle-related injuries, 54.5%
were not associated with a police report (Lopez et al., 2012).

AASHTO Council on Active Transportation Research Roadmap (July 2021).
https://onlinepubs.trb.org/onlinepubs/nchrp/docs/NCHRP20-123-02AASHTOCATResearchReview.pdf

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




Map 10

MEMORANDUM

alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 21 City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX (79




Map 11

MEMORANDUM

alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 22 City of Tigard

80 HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

Key Development Areas

One of Tigard’s strategic priorities is to create a well-connected pedestrian network that links all Tigard residents
and businesses. The land use map on the following page demonstrates how Hall Boulevard connects residential
areas to commercial areas, particularly those in the downtown core and the Tigard Triangle (Map 12). The
changing land use throughout the corridor helps to break the project extent into three conceptual sections:
North (Locust St to Hwy 99), Central (Hwy 99 to the Fanno Creek Trail), and South (Fanno Creek Trail to Durham
Road). The juxtaposition of the industrial areas to the east of downtown to the downtown commercial
district/the Fanno Creek recreational areas to the west and south contributes to mixing large trucks with people
walking and biking in those areas. To the north, there is interest in potentially designating the mixed-use areas
along Hall Boulevard an Oregon “Main Street” between Oak St and Locust St according to the Washington
Square Regional Center Redevelopment Plan (2021).

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX (81




Map 12

MEMORANDUM

alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 24 City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

Right-Of-Way

According to Murraysmith, the current right-of-way width along SW Hall Boulevard are a 100-foot width south
of Pacific Highway/OR 99W, and a 76-foot width north of Pacific Highway/OR 99W. The vast majority of the
street length (91 percent) does not meet current standards for right-of-way width. More than two-thirds of the
street length (68 percent) has a right-of-way width that is significantly (more than 10 feet) less than the
standard. More than half of the roadway length does not have enough right-of-way space to provide the basic
facilities (such as sidewalks) that would be expected in an urban corridor such as this.

Map 13 shows the estimated widths of publicly owned right-of-way based on tax lot data, completed in ArcGIS.
Note that these widths are not exact and have not been measured by a surveyor. The map is only intended to
provide an approximation of the right-of-way along the Hall Boulevard corridor. (In addition, the gaps in the
measurements are the product of the analytical process used to derive the widths, which does not measure at
intersections.) The map shows how right-of-way availability varies considerably along the Hall Boulevard
corridor. The most constrained areas along the corridor are shown in red. Generally speaking, the widths follow
a similar pattern to the North-Central-South conceptual breakdown of the roadway. The central section near
downtown is particularly narrow where Hall Boulevard curves and crosses the railroad.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX (83




Map 13

MEMORANDUM

alta

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. 26 City of Tigard

84 HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

Opportunities and Constraints

The Hall Boulevard corridor is a critical connection in the City’s transportation system. It is heavily utilized by many
different types of travelers, for different trip purposes, along a range of frontage and land use contexts. In examining
the existing conditions of the roadway, it’s apparent that improvements are needed for Hall Boulevard to meet
arterial standards. Among the many constraints that emerged in our analysis, many opportunities are also present
that offer the potential for Hall Boulevard to be premier active transportation corridor within the city’s existing and
planned networks.

Constraints

e Currently, the roadway lacks complete infrastructure for all users. Gaps remain in the sidewalk network, both
in terms of missing segments and the provision of ADA accessible curb ramps. Most existing sidewalks are 6ft
wide and do not have a landscaping strip separating the walkway from traffic, which reduces the level of
comfort for people walking. More recently installed sidewalks, such as those between Langtree St and
Ashford St, are 8 ft wide and are more comfortable. Sidewalks on the east side of Hall Boulevard between
Ross St and Murdock St have landscaping strip separation but abruptly end before reaching the bus stop to
the north.

e Improving sidewalk connections (and expanding the roadway footprint generally) may be more costly in
areas with significant grade differences, such as the ditch north of Sattler St on the west side, and the low-
lying areas around the Hall Boulevard/Bonita Rd intersection.

o Despite serving the frequent service Route 76, some bus stops along Hall Boulevard remain inaccessible to all
users. These stops include the intersections of Murdock St and McDonald St (northbound).

e  With the exception of the Fanno Creek Trail Crossing and the RRFB just north of Hwy 99, the only marked
crosswalks exist at signalized intersections. The distances between these crosswalks range from roughly 900
ft (Wall St to the Fanno Creek Trail crossing) to well over a half mile (north of Hwy 99). The lack of crossings
for people walking and biking limits the east-west connectivity of these networks at Hall Boulevard.

e Afew intersections that already have marked crosswalks with signals have documented concerns regarding
safety. These include the Fanno Creek Trail, Hwy 99, and Durham Rd.

e Hall Boulevard has complete bike lanes along the project extent, but these lanes are insufficient except for
the strongest and most fearless of riders. The bike lanes range from 4-6 ft, buses mix with bike lanes at all
stops, and there are three notable floating bike lanes that cross right turn pockets: the northbound approach
of Hall Boulevard/Bonita Rd, the northbound approach of Hall Boulevard/Knoll Dr, the southbound approach
of Hall Boulevard/Burnham St, and the northbound/southbound approach of Hall Boulevard/Hwy 99. Each of
these conditions contribute to a less comfortable environment for people biking.

e Available right-of-way appears to be most constrained in the central section, between Hwy 99 and the Fanno
Creek Trail. Proposed bikeway facility types may need to be different in this section than the North and South
sections. Tradeoffs will be difficult here without expanding the available ROW because the downtown area is
a critical area for transportation connections and should have some of the most robust facilities for all users.

e In addition to the more detailed constraints above, that the visioning project will need to account for the
following factors that add complexity to Hall Boulevard:

o The east-west traffic needs between McDonald St and Bonita Rd.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

The sensitive environmental context around Fanno Creek.
The railway crossing between Burnham St and Commercial St.
The offset skew of the Hunziker St-Scoffins St-Hall Boulevard intersection.

O O O O

The inter-jurisdictional nature of Hwy 99/Hall Boulevard and the Highway 217 Crossing. In these
locations, the Hall Boulevard visioning project will likely need to focus less on design specifics and
more on recommendations for ODOT.

Opportunities

e That Hall Boulevard connects parts of the city with distinct land use contexts is a strength of the corridor.
Increasing multi-modal connectivity between residential areas and commercial districts would greatly
improve the corridor’s ability to serve different trip types and users as well as fulfill City goals. Hall Boulevard
has the potential to connect people to parks, schools, the Tigard Public Library, City Hall, the WES commuter
rail, the future SWC light rail, Washington Square, and the Tigard Triangle.

e The Hall Boulevard visioning project is highly relevant to the interests of downtown Tigard. Collaborating and
coordinating with the ongoing Downtown Reimagined project presents an opportunity to improve public
engagement.

e Completing sidewalks on both sides of Hall Boulevard is a significant opportunity for the city’s pedestrian
network, which designates Hall Boulevard as a major pedestrian corridor.

e  One opportunity that Hall Boulevard presents is to build on a current strength of the corridor: inter-
neighborhood biking and walking trips. Along Hall Boulevard, there are many neighborhood cut-through
paths, which increase the east-west connectivity for people walking and biking. These paths could serve as
natural locations for mid-block crossings between signalized intersections. Potential crosswalks could include
those at: Bonaventure Ln, Ashford St, and Bellflower St.

e Other potential crosswalk improvements that emerged from the existing conditions analysis include the
north leg of McDonald St/Hall Boulevard and the north leg of Omara St/Hall Boulevard.

e For the Fanno Creek Crossing, there are multiple opportunities to improve the safety for people walking and
biking. One or more RRFBs may be more effective than the existing pedestrian hybrid beacon. Depending on
the bikeway design, curb extensions may be possible to reduce the crossing distance for pedestrians. There
may also be space for a refuge island.

e The future bikeway along Hall Boulevard has the potential to create safe connections to other major links in
the bicycle network. First, the future Fanno Creek trail extension on the southeast corner of Hall
Boulevard/Durham Rd will need to be accommodated in the visioning plan. Durham Rd, Sattler St, Bonita Rd,
McDonald St, Commercial St, Hunziker St, Oak St, and Locust St are all designated major street bikeways. Bike
turn boxes and advanced queuing facilities should be considered at these intersections to help people riding
bikes make turns to and from those corridors.

e For a high-traffic arterial like Hall Boulevard, bicycle facilities for people of all ages and abilities will need to
be as protected and separated from traffic as possible. Some segments, like in the South section of the
corridor, may have enough available right-of-way to install protected bike lanes through lane width reduction
and elimination or reduction of center turn lanes. In more constrained areas, we may need to look for
solutions that raise the bicycle facility’s grade, potentially combining with walkways in a shared use path

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX




MEMORANDUM

aita

design. Intersections such as McDonald St, Bonita Rd, Durham Rd, Oak St and Locust St in particular should be
examined for their ability to accommodate a fully protected intersection.

e The section of Hall Boulevard between Langtree St and Ashford St is particularly wide. If the rest of the
corridor isn’t widened to match this width, then the extra space here could be repurposed into a more highly
protected bikeway, stormwater catchment basin, or both.

e Several right turn pockets could be reevaluated as part of the Hall Boulevard visioning project. These include
the northbound approach of Hall Boulevard/Bonita Rd, the northbound approach of Hall Boulevard/Knoll Dr,
and the northbound/southbound approach of Hall Boulevard/Hwy 99. The most likely of these to be
eliminated would be at Hall Boulevard/Knoll Dr.

e The most constrained area is the Central section between the Fanno Creek crossing and Hwy 99. Expanding
right-of-way between Burnham St and the railroad may best come from the City’s public works property.

e There is a significant amount of space on the Hwy 217 bridge that could be repurposed for more protected
biking and walking facilities.

Alta Planning + Design, Inc. City of Tigard

HALL BOULEVARD CORRIDOR VISIONING PROJECT | APPENDIX (87







	Agenda
	AI 5425 River Terrace 2.0 Community Planning (Planning Services)
	       ATT_Scoring Summary
	AI 5429 FY24 BUDGET SUPPLEMENTAL REQUEST #2
	       ATT_Exhibit A- FY24_2 Budget Appropriations
	       ATT_Resolution FY24_2
	AI 5430 Budget Supplemental Process Discussion
	       ATT_Budget Supplemental Process Presentation
	AI 5390 Renewal Levy - Second Discussion of Ballot Title and Referral 
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_SEL 805
	AI 5391 Charter Amendment - Second Discussion of Ballot Title and Referral
	       ATT_Resolution
	       ATT_Exhibit A
	       ATT_Charter - Final - Exhibit B
	       ATT_SEL 805
	AI 5417 Hall Boulevard Corridor Concept Final Report
	       ATT_CDR Resolution
	       ATT_Hall CDR PPT
	       ATT_Hall CDR
	 
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

	1.
	WHY HALL BOULEVARD AND WHY NOW?
	Purpose
	Tigard and ODOT’s Shared Work Plan and Memorandum of Understanding
	Tigard’s Transportation 
System Plan
	The Metro Area’s Urban Arterial Problem


	2.
	Design Principles & Policy
	Tigard’s Complete Street Policy
	Tigard’s Transportation Safety Action Plan (2019)
	Policy Context: Guiding Principles for Hall Boulevard
	Themes from Tigard’s Goals and Policies


	3.
	EXISTING CONDITIONS
	Condition Summary
	Hall Boulevard’s Functional Classification and Existing Design


	4.
	PLANNING PROCESS
	Key Takeaways from Public Engagement Efforts


	5.
	PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS
	From Plan to Project: Throughline from the TSP
	A New Vision for Hall Boulevard 
	High-Level Concept Shaped by City Values and Public Input
	Segment and Perspective Views

	Why Three Lanes? Wouldn’t More Lanes Be Better?
	Key Intersections
	Recommendations Table


	6.
	Implementation
	North Segment (Locust Street to Highway 99)
	Central Segment (A) (Highway 99 to Commercial Street)
	Central Segment (B) (Commercial Street to Omara Street)
	South Segment (Omara Street to Durham Road)
	Cost Estimate 
	Prioritization


	7.
	APPENDIX



